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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

This A nnual Report on Form 10-K  contains forward-looking statements. The words or phrases “would be,” “will allow,” “intends to,” “will likely result,” “are expected to,”
“will con nue,” “is an cipated,” “es mate,” “project,” or similar expressions are intended to iden fy “forward-looking statements.” A ctual results could differ materially from those
projected in the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of risks and uncertain es, including the risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in this Report. See “Risk
Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and A nalysis of F inancial Condi on and Results of O pera ons.” Statements made herein are as of the date of the filing of this A nnual
Report on Form 10-K  with the Securi es and Exchange Commission and should not be relied upon as of any subsequent date. Unless otherwise required by applicable law, we do
not undertake, and specifically disclaim any obliga on, to update any forward-looking statements to reflect occurrences, developments, unan cipated events or circumstances a er
the date of such statement.
  
 

 
 

 
 
 

-i i -



Table of Contents
 
 

ART I
 
ITEM I. BUSINESS
 
Overview
 

Park C ity Group, I nc., a  Nevada corpora on (“Park C ity Group”, “We”, “us”, “our” or the “Company”) i s  a  So ware-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) provider, and the parent
company of Reposi Trak, I nc., a  Utah corpora on (“ReposiTrak”) which operates  a  bus iness-to-bus iness  (“B2B”) e-commerce, compl iance, and supply chain management
platform that partners  with retai lers , wholesalers , and product suppl iers  to help them source, vet, and transact with their suppl iers  in order to accelerate sales , control  risks ,
and improve supply chain efficiencies , and source hard-to-get-things.
 

The Company’s  services  are grouped in three appl ica on suites : (i ) Reposi Trak MarketP lace (“MarketPlace”), encompass ing the Company’s  suppl ier discovery and
B2B e-commerce solu ons, which helps  the Company’s  customers  find new suppl iers  and source hard to find i tems, (i i ) Reposi Trak Compl iance and Food Safety (“Compliance
and Food Safety”) solu ons, which help the Company’s  customers  vet suppl iers  to mi gate the risk of doing bus iness  with these suppl iers , and (i i i ) Reposi Trak’s  Supply Chain
(“Supply Chain”) solutions, which help the Company’s  customers  to more efficiently manage their various  transactions  with their suppl iers .
 

The Company’s  Supply Chain and MarketP lace services  provide i ts  customers  with greater flexibi l i ty in sourcing products  by enabl ing them to choose new suppl iers
and integrate them into their supply chain faster and more cost effec vely, and i t helps  them to more efficiently manage these rela onships , enhancing revenue whi le
lowering working capital , labor costs  and waste. The Company’s  Compl iance and Food Safety solu ons help reduce a company’s  poten al  regulatory, legal , and criminal  risk
from i ts  supply chain partners  by providing a  way for them to ensure these suppl iers  are compl iant with food safety regulations, such as  the Food Safety Modernization Act of
2011 (“FSMA”).
 

The Company’s  services  are del ivered though proprietary so ware products  des igned, developed, marketed and supported by the Company. These products  provide
vis ibi l i ty and faci l i tate improved bus iness  processes  among al l  key cons tuents  in the supply chain, star ng with the retai ler and moving backwards  to suppl iers  and
eventual ly to raw materia l  providers . The Company provides  cloud-based appl ica ons  and services  that address  e-commerce, supply chain, food safety and compl iance
ac vi es . The principal  customers  for the Company’s  products  are household name mul -store food retai l  chains  and their suppl iers , branded food manufacturers , food
wholesalers  and distributors , and other food service bus inesses.
   

The Company has  a  hub and spoke bus iness  model . The Company is  typical ly engaged by retai lers  and wholesalers  (“Hubs”), which in turn require their suppl iers
(“Spokes”) to uti l i ze the Company’s  services .
 

The Company is  incorporated in the state of Nevada and has  three principal  subs idiaries : P C Group, I nc., a  Utah corpora on (98.76% owned) (“PCG Utah”); Park C ity
Group, I nc., a  Delaware corpora on (100% owned) (“P CG Delaware”); and Reposi Trak (100% owned) (col lec vely, the “ Subsidiaries”). Al l  intercompany transac ons and
balances  have been el iminated in the Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements , which contain the opera ng results  of the opera ons of P CG Delaware and Reposi Trak.
Park City Group has  no bus iness  operations  separate from the operations  conducted through i ts  Subs idiaries .
 

The Company’s  principal  execu ve offices are located at 5282 South Commerce Drive, Suite D292, Murray, Utah 84107. I ts  telephone number is  (435) 645-2000. I ts
website address  is  www.parkcitygroup.com, and ReposiTrak’s  website address  is  www.repositrak.com.
 
Recent Developments
 

During the second hal f of fiscal  year 2021, Reposi Trak launched two new products  des igned to expand market share in the manufacturing segment: Cer ficate of
Analys is  Automa on and Ac ve-Q M S for Q ual i ty Management. Both solu ons were developed at the request of exis ng Compl iance Management Solu on customers  and
improve compe veness  in the manufacturing/food supply chain with synergis c solu ons for growth in exis ng customers  and increas ing compe veness  for new
business  focused on qual i ty management.
 

The qual i ty management solution also has  appl ication in the retai l  sector, in central  commissaries , distribution centers , and even task management in stores .
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Another major new product ini a ve commenced in February 2021, as  Reposi Trak joined with a  group of major retai lers  and wholesalers  to form the Food
Traceabi l i ty Leadership Consor um (“FTLC”), in response to the Food and Drug Administra on's  (“FDA”) announcement regarding the increase of food traceabi l i ty
requirements  under the FS M A. The expanded traceabi l i ty requirements  proposed by the F DA have far reaching consequences  for the US food supply chain, from farms to
fisheries  down to retai l  s tores , due to new, detai led documentation requirements  des igned to support more effective recal ls .
 

These new proposed requirements  create substan al  data and records  management chal lenges  for a l l  supply chain trading partners , many of whom do not have this
capabi l i ty today. The risk is  that the supply chain wi l l  become frac ous  array of inoperable systems that could lead to mass ive opera onal  complexity and expense
escala on. The F TLC founding members  worked col labora vely with Reposi Trak to develop a complete food traceabi l i ty solu on that meets  a l l  the F DA FS M A proposed
repor ng requirements  at a  very large manageable cost, based on the Reposi Trak supply chain pla orm which tracks  product/shipment data in a  s imi lar manner today for
cost and inventory control  purposes.
 

The new solu on, cal led the Reposi Trak Traceabi l i ty Network, i s  launching in September 2021 with phased rol l  outs  at suppl iers  and retai lers , and is  expected to
scale rapidly throughout fiscal  year 2022, based on the existing Compl iance Management user network.

 
COVID-19

 
There are many uncertain es  regarding COVI D-19, and the Company is  closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on al l  aspects  of i ts  bus iness , including how i t

wi l l  impact i ts  services , customers, employees, vendors , and bus iness  partners . W hi le the pandemic did not materia l ly adversely affect the Company’s  financial  results  and
business  opera ons in the Company’s  fiscal  years  ended June 30, 2020 or 2021, we are unable to predict the impact that COVI D-19 wi l l  have on i ts  future financial  pos i on
and opera ng results  due to numerous uncertain es. The Company expects  to con nue to assess  the evolving impact of COVI D-19 and intends to make adjustments  to i ts
responses  accordingly.
 

The Coronavirus  Aid, Rel ief, and Economic Securi ty Act ("CARES Act") was  enacted on March 27, 2020 in the United States . O n Apri l  23, 2020, the Company received
proceeds from a loan in the amount of approximately $1.1 mi l l ion from i ts  lender, U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on (the “Lender”), pursuant to approval  by the U.S. Smal l
Bus iness  Administra on (the “SBA”) for the Lender to fund the Company’s  request for a  loan under the S BA’s  Paycheck P rotec on P rogram (“PPP Loan”) created as  part of the
C AR ES Act administered by the S BA. I n accordance with the requirements  of the C AR ES Act, the Company used the proceeds from the P P P  Loan primari ly for payrol l  costs ,
covered rent payments , and covered u l i es  during the eight-week period commencing on the date of loan approval . The P P P  Loan was scheduled to mature on Apri l  23, 2022,
with a  1.00% interest rate, and was subject to the terms and condi ons  appl icable to a l l  loans  made pursuant to the Paycheck P rotec on P rogram as  administered by the S BA
under the CARES Act. The PPP Loan was forgiven on December 19, 2020.
 
Company History
 

The Company’s  technology has  i ts  genes is  in the opera ons of Mrs. F ields  Cookies , a  company co-founded by Randal l  K . F ields , the Company’s  Chief Execu ve
O fficer. The Company began opera ons u l izing patented computer so ware and profit op miza on consul ng services  to help i ts  retai l  cl ients  reduce their inventory and
labor costs .

 
O n January 13, 2009, the Company acquired 100% of P rescient Appl ied I ntel l igence, I nc., a  Delaware corpora on (“Prescient”), a  provider of solu ons for retai lers

which, among other things , captured information about transactions  between retai lers  and their suppl iers . 
 
In February 2014, Prescient changed i ts  name to Park City Group, Inc. As  a  result, both Park City Group and PCG Delaware were named Park City Group, Inc.
 
I n June 2015, the Company elected to exercise an op on to acquire a  75% interest in Reposi Trak from Leavi  Partners , LP  for a  cash payment and nego ated the

purchase of the remaining 25% with an exchange of shares  of the Company. As  a  result, ReposiTrak became a whol ly owned subs idiary of the Company.
 
As  of June 30, 2020, the Company completed i ts  Supply Chain and Compl iance and Food Safety, and MarketPlace suppl ier discovery and B2B e-commerce solution. As

a result, the Company is  now largely capable of del ivering i ts  services  through a s ingle ReposiTrak branded user interface.
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Target Industries Overview
 

The Company develops  i ts  so ware and services  for mul -store retai l  chains , wholesalers  and distributors , and their suppl iers . The bulk of the Company’s
customers  are in the U.S. consumer retai l  sector for food and general  merchandise, a l though the Company’s  so ware and services  are not sold exclus ively to this  customer
base, and the Company bel ieves  that i ts  software and services  are a lso appl icable to a  wide variety of other potentia l  customers  domestical ly and abroad.
 
Backdrop

 
The U.S. consumer retai l  sector in general , and food and general  merchandise retai lers  more acutely, are facing pressure from several  s ignificant forces. These

include (i ) increased compe ve pressures  from the rise of onl ine retai lers , (i i ) increased regulatory and tort risks , par cularly for food retai lers , as  a  result of the passage
of the FS M A which placed greater responsibi l i ty for the safety of products  on the par cipants  in the food supply chain, and (i i i ) the pressure from consumers  to increase
product divers i ty, and in particular, the number of smal ler, local ized vendors .
 
Solutions and Services
 

The Company’s  so ware and services  are des igned to address  the bus iness  problems faced by our customers. These solu ons are del ivered via  a  cloud-based
infrastructure and grouped in three product appl ication suites  that mirror the workflow of the Company’s  customers  as  they manage the activi ties  of their supply chain.
 
Key Application Suites
 
● ReposiTrak MarketPlace i s  the Company’s  suppl ier discovery and B2B e-commerce solu on. MarketP lace provides  the Company’s  customers  with greater flexibi l i ty in

sourcing products  by enabl ing them to screen and choose suppl iers  based on a wide variety of cri teria, including, but not l imited to, predetermined compl iance
characteris cs , and then to integrate these suppl iers  into their supply chain faster and more cost effec vely. MarketP lace helps  the Company’s  customers  respond to
compe ve pressures  from onl ine retai lers  by providing them with greater capabi l i es  to increase local  sourcing, ta i lor their product offering to local  market tastes ,
and stock their stores  appropriately for local  events . MarketP lace is  a lso beneficial  to suppl iers  connected to Reposi Trak’s  pla orm in that they can use MarketP lace
to highl ight the products  that they sel l  to generate incremental  sales . The bus iness  model  for MarketP lace is  evolving as  the Company’s  customers  help to develop new
use cases  for the appl ica on. I n some s i tua ons, the Company acts  as  an agent for suppl iers  or provides  supply chain technology services . I n other s i tua ons, at the
customer’s  request, the Company may act as  the suppl ier for certain products .

 
● ReposiTrak C ompliance and Food Safety Solu ons help the Company’s  customers  reduce poten al  regulatory and legal  risk from their supply chain partners . The

Company does  this  by providing a  way of gathering the array of documents  that may be needed for the customer to determine that i ts  suppl iers  are compl iant with a
wide variety of cri teria  including, but not l imited to, food safety regula ons, such as  those required by the F M SA and general  bus iness  compl iance standards  such as
adequate l iabi l i ty insurance. The Company’s  Compl iance and Food Safety solu ons currently include four main appl ica ons: Vendor Val ida on, Compl iance
Management, Qual i ty Management Systems (“QMS”) and Track & Trace. Reposi Trak a lso hosts  and is  integrated with the food safety audit database of the Safe Q ual i ty
Food I ns tute (“SQFI”). S Q F I  i s  one of the leading schemas for cer fying that a  food retai ler ’s  suppl iers  are compl iant with Global  Food Safety I ni a ve (“GFSI”)
standards, which many food retai lers  require of their suppl iers  as  a  condi on of doing bus iness . S Q F I  i s  owned and operated by the Food Marke ng I ns tute (“FMI”),
one of the food industry’s  largest trade associations.

 
● ReposiTrak Supply Chain Solutions help the Company’s  customers  to more efficiently manage rela onships  with suppl iers  so that they can “stock less  and sel l  more” by

reducing inventory, labor costs  and waste whi le a lso increas ing revenue. The Company is  a  leader in helping i ts  customers  to manage their rela onship with Direct
Store Del ivery (“DSD”) suppl iers . The Company has  observed that i ts  customers are shi ing a  greater percentage of their product mix to D S D suppl iers  to lower their
opera ng costs . Through a process  known as  Scan Based Trading the Company enables  i ts  customers  to sel l  products  from D S D suppl iers  on a cons ignment bas is ,
which lowers  their working capital  requirements  by shi ing the financial  burden of the inventory to the suppl ier. O ther Supply Chain solu ons include ScoreTracker,
Vendor Managed I nventory, Store Level  O rdering and Replenishment, Enterprise Supply Chain P lanning, Fresh Market Manager and Ac onManager®, a l l  of which are
des igned to a id the Company’s  customer in managing inventory, product mix and labor whi le improving sales  through the reduc on of out of stocks  by improving
vis ibi l i ty and forecasting.
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Professional Services
 

The Company has  two profess ional  services  groups: (i ) the Bus iness  Analy cs  Group offers  bus iness-consul ng services  to suppl iers  and retai lers  in the grocery,
convenience store and special ty retai l  industries , and (i i ) the P rofess ional  Services  Group provides  consul ng services  to ensure that our solu ons are seamless ly integrated
into our customers’ bus iness  processes  as  quickly and efficiently as  poss ible.
 
Technology, Development and Operations
 
Product Development
 

The Company’s  product development strategy is  focused on crea ng common technology elements  that can be leveraged in mul ple appl ica ons  across  our core
markets . To remain competitive, the Company is  currently des igning, coding and testing new products  and developing expanded functional i ty of i ts  current products .
 
Operations
 

We currently serve our customers  from a third-party data center hos ng faci l i ty. Along with the Company’s  Statement on Standards  for A esta on Engagements
(“SSAE”) No. 16 cer fica on Service O rganiza on Control  (“SOC2”), the third-party faci l i ty i s  a lso a  S SAE No. 16 – S O C2 cer fied loca on and is  secured by around-the-clock
guards, biometric screening and escort-control led access , and is  supported by on-s i te backup generators  in the event of a  power fa i lure.
  
Customers
 

The Company is  currently engaged primari ly by food related consumer goods retai lers , wholesalers , and their suppl iers . The bulk of the Company’s  customers  are in
the U.S. consumer retai l  sector for food and general  merchandise. However, the Company is  opportunis c and wi l l  offer i ts  solu ons to a  wide variety of other poten al
customers. Target Corporation accounted for approximately 9.2% of the Company’s  total  revenue in the fiscal  year ended June 30, 2021.

 
Sales, Marketing and Customer Support
 
Sales and Marketing
 

Through a focused and dedicated sales  effort des igned to address  the requirements  of each of i ts  solu ons, the Company bel ieves  i t i s  wel l  pos i oned to understand
its  customers’ bus inesses , trends  in the marketplace, competitive products  and opportunities  for new product development. 

 
The Company’s  primary marke ng objec ves  have been to increase awareness  of our solu ons, generate sales  leads  and develop new customer rela onships . To

this  end, the Company a ends industry trade shows, conducts  direct marke ng programs, publ ishes  industry trade ar cles , par cipates  in interviews and selec vely
advertises  in industry publ ications.

 
I n fiscal  2016 the Company embarked on a process  of repurposing the Company’s  supply chain appl ica ons  so that they can be del ivered via  Reposi Trak’s  highly

scalable onl ine infrastructure and launching i ts  MarketP lace suppl ier discovery and B2B e-commerce solu on on this  same infrastructure. As  a  result, the Company is  now
largely capable of del ivering i ts  services  through a s ingle ReposiTrak branded user interface.

 
W ith the convergence of the Company’s  solu ons to a  s ingle del ivery pla orm, the Company also reorganized i ts  sale force and reoriented i ts  marke ng efforts . This

process  involved streaml ining the sales  force to enable cross-sel l ing by reducing regional  account managers  and shi ing our sales  emphasis  towards  the Company’s  ins ide
sales  team located at i ts  corporate headquarters  in Murray, Utah.
 
Customer Support

 
The Company’s  global  customer support group responds to both bus iness  and technical  inquiries  from i ts  customers  rela ng to how to use i ts  solu ons and is

avai lable to customers  by telephone and emai l . Bas ic customer support during bus iness  hours  is  avai lable to customers. P remier customer support includes  extended
avai labi l i ty and additional  services  and is  avai lable a long with additional  support services  such as  developer support and partner support for an additional  fee.
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Competition
 

The Company competes  with a  myriad of so ware vendors , developers  and integrators , B2B exchanges, consul ng firms, focused solu on providers , and bus iness
intel l igence technology pla orms. Although our compe tors  are o en cons iderably larger companies  in s ize with larger sales  forces  and marke ng budgets , the Company
bel ieves  that i ts  deep industry knowledge, the breadth and depth of our offerings , and our rela onships  with key industry, wholesaler, and other trade groups and
associations, gives  i t a  competitive advantage.
 
Patents and Proprietary Rights
 

The Company rel ies  on a combina on of trademark, copyright, trade secret and patent laws in the United States  and other jurisdic ons  as  wel l  as  confiden al i ty
procedures  and contractual  provis ions  to protect our proprietary technology and our name. We also enter into confiden al i ty agreements  with our employees, consultants
and other third parties  and control  access  to software, documentation and other proprietary information.
 

The Company has  been awarded nine U.S. patents , and a number of U.S. registered trademarks  and U.S. copyrights  rela ng to i ts  so ware technology and solu ons.
The Company’s  patent por ol io has  been transferred to an unrelated third party, a l though the Company retains  the right to use the l icensed patents  in connec on with i ts
bus iness . The Company’s  pol icy is  to con nue to seek patent protec on for a l l  developments , inven ons and improvements  that are patentable and have poten al  value to
the Company and to protect i ts  trade secrets  and other confiden al  and proprietary informa on, and the Company intends to defend i ts  intel lectual  property rights  to the
extent i ts  resources  permit.

 
The Company is  not aware of any patent infringement cla ims against i t; however, there are no assurances  that l i ga on to enforce patents  issued to the Company to

protect proprietary informa on, or to defend against the Company’s  a l leged infringement of the rights  of others  wi l l  not occur. Should any such l i ga on occur, the Company
may incur s ignificant l i ga on costs , and i t may result in resources  being diverted from other planned ac vi es , which may have a materia l ly adverse effect on the
Company’s  operations  and financial  condition.
 
Employees
 

As  of June 30, 2021, the Company employed a total  of 70 employees. O f these employees, 15 are located overseas. The Company plans  to con nue expanding i ts
offshore workforce to augment i ts  analy cs  services  offerings , expand i ts  profess ional  services  and to provide addi onal  programming resources. The employees  are not
represented by any labor union.
 
Reports to Security Holders
 

The Company is  subject to the informa onal  requirements  of the Securi es  Exchange Act of 1934, as  amended (the “Exchange A ct”). Accordingly, i t files  annual ,
quarterly and other reports  and informa on with the Securi es  and Exchange Commiss ion (“SEC”). The S EC maintains  an I nternet s i te (www.sec.gov) that contains  reports ,
proxy and informa on statements , and other informa on regarding issuers  that file electronical ly with the S EC. Copies  of these reports , proxy and informa on statements
and other information may be obtained by electronic request at the fol lowing e-mai l  address: publ icinfo@sec.gov.

 
Government Regulation and Approval
 

Like a l l  bus inesses , the Company is  subject to numerous federal , s tate and local  laws and regula ons, including regula ons  rela ng to patent, copyright, and
trademark law matters .
 
Cost of Compliance with Environmental Laws
 

The Company currently has  no costs  associated with compl iance with environmental  regula ons  and does  not an cipate any future costs  associated with
environmental  compl iance; however, there can be no assurance that i t wi l l  not incur such costs  in the future. 
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ITEM 1A. ISK FACTORS
 

A n investment in our Common Stock is subject to many risks. You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other informa on included in
this A nnual Report on Form 10-K  (this “A nnual Report”), including the financial statements and the related notes, before you decide whether to invest in our Common Stock. O ur
business, opera ng results and financial condi on could be harmed by any of the following risks. The trading price of our Common Stock could decline due to any of these risks, and
you could lose all or part of your investment.
 
Risks Related to the Company
 
We have incurred losses in the past and there can be no assurance that we will operate profitably in the future.
 

O ur marke ng strategy emphasizes  sales  of subscrip on-based services , instead of annual  l icenses, and us ing Spokes  to connect to our Hubs. This  strategy has
resulted in the development of a  founda on of retai l  and wholesale Hubs to which suppl iers  can be “connected”, thereby accelera ng future growth. I f, however, this
marke ng strategy fa i ls , revenue and opera ons wi l l  be nega vely affected. We had net income of $ 4,117,395 for the year ended June 30, 2021, compared to a  net income of
$1,593,269 for the year ended June 30, 2020. Although we generated net income in the year ended June 30, 2021, there can be no assurance that we wi l l  achieve profitabi l i ty
in future periods. We cannot provide assurance that we wi l l  continue to generate revenue or have sustainable profi ts . If we do not operate profi tably in the future, our current
cash resources  wi l l  be used to fund our opera ng losses . Con nued losses  would have an adverse effect on the long-term value of our Common Stock and any investment in
the Company.
 
Although our cash resources are currently sufficient, our long-term liquidity and capital requirements may be difficult to predict, which may adversely affect our long-term cash
position.
 

Historical ly, we have been successful  in ra is ing capital  when necessary, including through private placements , a  registered direct offering, and stock issuances  to
our officers  and directors , including our Chief Execu ve O fficer, to pay our indebtedness  and fund our opera ons, in addi on to cash flow from opera ons. I f we are
required to seek addi onal  financing in the future in order to fund our opera ons, re re our indebtedness  and otherwise carry out our bus iness  plan, there can be no
assurance that such financing wi l l  be avai lable on acceptable terms, or at a l l , and there can be no assurance that any such arrangement, i f required or otherwise sought,
would be avai lable on terms deemed to be commercial ly acceptable and in our best interests . 
   
O ur business is dependent upon the con nued services of our founder and C hief Execu ve O fficer, Randall K. F ields. Should we lose the services of Mr. F ields, our opera ons will
be negatively impacted.
 

O ur bus iness  is  dependent upon the exper se and con nued service of our founder and Chief Execu ve O fficer, Randal l  K . F ields . Mr. F ields  is  essen al  to our
opera ons. Accordingly, an investor must rely on Mr. F ields ’ management decis ions  that wi l l  con nue to control  our bus iness  affairs . We currently maintain key man
insurance on Mr. F ields ’ l i fe in the amount of $5,000,000; however, that coverage would be inadequate to compensate for the loss  of his  services . The loss  of the services  of
Mr. Fields  would have a materia l ly adverse effect upon our bus iness .
 
Risk Relating to Business Operations
 
Quarterly and annual operating results may fluctuate, which makes it difficult to predict future performance.
 

Management expects  a  s ignificant por on of our revenue stream to come from the sale of subscrip ons, and to a  lesser extent, transac ons processed though
MarketP lace, l icense sales , maintenance and profess ional  services  charged to new customers. These amounts  wi l l  fluctuate and are uncertain because predic ng future
sales  is  difficult and involves  specula on. I n addi on, we may poten al ly experience s ignificant fluctua ons in future opera ng results  caused by a  variety of factors , many
of which are outs ide of our control , including:
 
● our abi l i ty to retain and increase sales  to existing customers, attract new customers  and satis fy our customers’ requirements;

 
● the renewal  rates  for our subscriptions  and other services;
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● changes  in our pricing pol icies , whether ini tiated by us  or as  a  result of competition;

 
● the cost, timing and management effort for the introduction of new services , including new features  to our existing services;

 
● the rate of expansion and productivi ty of our sales  force;

 
● new product and service introductions  by our competitors ;

  
● variations  in the revenue mix of editions  or vers ions  of our service;

 
● technical  di fficulties  or interruptions  in our service;

 
● general  economic condi ons  that may adversely affect ei ther our customers’ abi l i ty or wi l l ingness  to purchase addi onal  subscrip ons  or upgrade their services , or

delay a  prospective customer’s  purchas ing decis ion, or reduce the value of new subscription contracts  or affect renewal  rates;
 

● timing of additional  expenses  and investments  in infrastructure to support growth in our bus iness;
 

● regulatory compl iance costs ;
 

● consol idation in the food industry;
 
● the timing of customer payments  and payment defaults  by customers;

 
● extraordinary expenses  such as  l i tigation or other dispute-related settlement payments;

 
● the impact of new accounting pronouncements;

 
● the timing of stock awards  to employees  and the related financial  s tatement impact; and

 
● system or service fa i lures , securi ty breaches  or network downtime.
 

Future opera ng results  may fluctuate because of the foregoing factors , making i t difficult to predict opera ng results . Period-to-period comparisons  of opera ng
results  are not necessari ly meaningful  and should not be rel ied upon as  an indicator of future performance. I n addi on, a  large por on of our expense wi l l  be fixed in the
short-term, particularly with respect to faci l i ties  and personnel  making future operating results  sens itive to fluctuations  in revenue.
 
We face threats from compe ng and emerging technologies that may affect our profitability, as well as compe tors that are larger and have greater financial and opera onal
resources that may give them an advantage in the market.
 

Markets  for our type of so ware products  and that of our compe tors  are characterized by development of new so ware, so ware solu ons or enhancements  that
are subject to constant change; rapidly evolving technological  change; and unan cipated changes  in customer needs. Because these markets  are subject to such rapid
change, the l i fe cycle of our products  i s  difficult to predict. As  a  result, we are subject to the fol lowing risks : whether or how we wi l l  respond to technological  changes  in a

mely or cost-effec ve manner; whether the products  or technologies  developed by our compe tors  wi l l  render our products  and services  obsolete or shorten the l i fe cycle of
our products  and services; and whether our products  and services  wi l l  achieve market acceptance.
 

 Moreover, many of our compe tors  are larger and have greater financial  and opera onal  resources  than we do. This  may al low them to offer be er pricing terms to
customers  in the industry, which could result in a  loss  of poten al  or current customers  or could force us  to lower prices . O ur compe tors  may have the abi l i ty to devote
more financial  and opera onal  resources  to the development of new technologies  that provide improved opera ng func onal i ty and features  to their product and service
offerings. I f successful , their development efforts  could render our product and service offerings  less  des irable to customers, again resul ng in the loss  of customers  or a
reduction in the price we can demand for our offerings . Any of these actions  could have a s igni ficant effect on revenue.
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We face risks associated with new product introductions.
 

O ur future revenue is  dependent upon the successful  and mely development of new and enhanced vers ions  of our products  and poten al  product offerings  suitable
to the customers’ needs. I f we fa i l  to successful ly upgrade exis ng products  and develop new products , and those new products  do not achieve market acceptance, our
revenue wi l l  be negatively impacted.
 

It may be di fficult for us  to assess  risks  associated with potentia l  new product offerings:
 
● it may be difficult for us  to predict the amount of service and technological  resources  that wi l l  be needed by customers  of new offerings , and i f we underes mate the

necessary resources, the qual i ty of our service wi l l  be negatively impacted, thereby undermining the value of the product to the customer;
 

● technological  i ssues  between us  and our customers  may be experienced in capturing data necessary for new product offerings , and these technological  i ssues  may
result in unforeseen conflicts  or technological  setbacks  when implemen ng these products , which could result in materia l  delays  and even result in a  termina on of
the engagement;

 
● a customer’s  experience with new offerings , i f negative, may prevent us  from having an opportunity to sel l  additional  products  and services  to that customer;

 
● i f customers  do not use our products  as  recommends and/or fa i l  to implement any needed correc ve ac on(s), i t i s  unl ikely that customers  wi l l  experience the

business  benefi ts  from these products  and may, therefore, be hes itant to continue the engagement as  wel l  as  acquire any other products  from us; and
 

● delays  in proceeding with the implementation of new products  for a  new customer wi l l  negatively affect our cash flow and our abi l i ty to predict cash flow.
  
We cannot accurately predict renewal or upgrade rates and the impact these rates may have on our future revenue and operating results.
 

O ur customers  have no obl iga on to renew their subscrip ons  for our service a er the expira on of their ini a l  subscrip on period. O ur renewal  rates  may decl ine
or fluctuate as  a  result of factors , including customer dissa sfac on with our service, customers’ abi l i ty to con nue their opera ons and spending levels , consol ida on,
and deteriora ng general  economic condi ons. I f our customers  do not renew their subscrip ons  for our service or reduce the level  of service at the me of renewal , our
revenue wi l l  decl ine, and our bus iness  wi l l  suffer.

 
O ur future success  a lso depends in part on our abi l i ty to increase rates , sel l  addi onal  features  and services , or addi on subscrip ons  to our current customers.

This  may also require increas ingly sophis cated and costly sales  and marke ng efforts  that are targeted at senior management. I f these strategies  fa i l , we wi l l  need to
refocus  our efforts  toward other solu ons, which could lead to increased development and marke ng costs , delayed revenue streams, and otherwise nega vely affect our
operations.
 
If our C ompliance and Food Safety solu ons do not perform as expected, whether as a result of operator error or otherwise, it could impair our opera ng results and
reputation.
 

O ur success  depends on the food safety market’s  confidence that we can provide rel iable, high-qual i ty repor ng for our customers. We bel ieve that our customers
are l ikely to be par cularly sens i ve to product defects  and operator errors , including i f our systems fa i l  to accurately report i ssues  that could reduce the l iabi l i ty of our
cl ients  in the event of a  product recal l . I n addi on, our reputa on and the reputa on of our products  can be adversely affected i f our systems fa i l  to perform as  expected.
However, i f our customers  or poten al  customers  fa i l  to implement and use our systems as  suggested by us , they may not be able to deal  with a  recal l  as  effec vely as  they
could have. As  a  result, the fa i lure or perceived fa i lure of our products  to perform as  expected, could have a materia l  adverse effect on our revenue, results  of opera ons and
business .
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If a customer is sued because of a recalled product we could be joined in that suit, the defense of which would impair our operating results.
 

We bel ieve our Compl iance and Food Safety solu ons would be helpful  in the event of a  recal l . However, their ul mate usefulness  is  dependent on how the customer
uses  our products , which is  in many ways  out of our control . S imi larly, a  customer which is  a  defendant in a  product l iabi l i ty case could cla im that had our services
performed as  represented the extent of poten al  l iabi l i ty would have been minimized and therefore, we should have some contributory l iabi l i ty in the case. Defending such a
cla im could have a materia l  adverse effect on our revenue, results  of operations  and bus iness .

 
The deployment of our services, or consulta on provided by our personnel, could result in li ga on naming us as a party, which li ga on could result in a material and adverse
effect on us, and our results of operations.
 

O ur Compl iance and Food Safety solu ons are marketed to poten al  customers  based, in part, on our service’s  abi l i ty to reduce a company’s  poten al  regulatory,
legal , and criminal  risk from i ts  supply chain partners . I n the event l i ga on is  commenced against a  customer based on issues  caused by a  cons tuent in the supply chain,
or consulta on provided by our personnel , we could be joined or named in such l i ga on. As  a  result, we could face substan al  defense costs . I n addi on, any adverse
determination resulting in such l i tigation could have a materia l  and adverse effect on us , and our results  of operations.
  
We face risks relating to the sale and delivery of merchandise to customers.
 

We depend on a number of other companies  to perform func ons cri cal  to our abi l i ty to del iver products  to our customers, including maintaining inventory,
preparing merchandise for shipment to our customers  and del ivering purchased merchandise on a mely bas is . We also depend on the del ivery services  that we and they
u l ize. We also depend on our partners  to ensure proper label l ing of products . I ssues  or concerns  regarding, product safety, label l ing, content or qual i ty could result in
consumer or governmental  cla ims. In l imited ci rcumstances, we sel l  merchandise that we have purchased. In these instances, we assume the risks  related to inventory.
 
We face risks associated with proprietary protection of our software.
 

Our success  depends on our abi l i ty to develop and protect existing and new proprietary technology and intel lectual  property rights .  We seek to protect our software,
documenta on and other wri en materia ls  primari ly through a combina on of patents , trademarks, and copyright laws, trade secret laws, confiden al i ty procedures  and
contractual  provis ions. W hi le we have a empted to safeguard and maintain our proprietary rights , there are no assurances  that we wi l l  be successful  in doing so. O ur
competitors  may independently develop or patent technologies  that are substantia l ly equivalent or superior to ours .

 
Despite our efforts  to protect our proprietary rights , unauthorized par es  may a empt to copy aspects  of our products  or obtain and use informa on that we regard

as  proprietary. I n some types  of s i tua ons, we may rely in part on ‘shrink wrap’ or ‘point and cl ick’ l icenses  that are not s igned by the end user and, therefore, may be
unenforceable under the laws of certain jurisdic ons. Pol icing unauthorized use of our products  i s  difficult. W hi le we are unable to determine the extent to which piracy our
so ware exists , so ware piracy can be expected to be a pers istent problem, par cularly in foreign countries  where the laws may not protect proprietary rights  as  ful ly as  the
United States . We can offer no assurance that our means of protec ng our proprietary rights  wi l l  be adequate or that our compe tors  wi l l  not reverse engineer or
independently develop s imi lar technology.
 
We may discover software errors in our products that may result in a loss of revenue, injury to our reputation or subject us to substantial liability.
 

Non-conformi es  or bugs  (“errors”) may be found from me to me in our exis ng, new or enhanced products  a er commencement of commercial  shipments ,
resul ng in loss  of revenue or injury to our reputa on. I n the past, we have discovered errors  in our products  and as  a  result, have experienced delays  in the shipment of
products . Errors  in our products  may be caused by defects  in third-party so ware incorporated into our products . I f so, we may not be able to fix these defects  without the
coopera on of these so ware providers . Because these defects  may not be as  s ignificant to the so ware provider as  they are to us , we may not receive the rapid coopera on
that may be required. We may not have the contractual  right to access  the source code of third-party so ware, and even i f we do have access  to the code, we may not be able
to fix the defect. I n addi on, our customers  may use our service in unan cipated ways  that may cause a disrup on in service for other customers  a emp ng to access  their
data. S ince our customers  use our products  for cri cal  bus iness  appl ica ons, any errors , defects  or other performance problems could hurt our reputa on and may result in
damage to our customers’ bus iness . I f that occurs , customers  could elect not to renew, delay or withhold payment to us , we could lose future sales  or customers  may make
warranty or other cla ims against us , which could result in an increase in our provis ion for doub ul  accounts , an increase in col lec on cycles  for accounts  receivable or the
expense and risk of l i tigation. These potentia l  scenarios , successful  or otherwise, would l ikely be time consuming and costly.
 
 
 

-9-



Table of Contents
 
 
Interruptions or delays in service from our third-party data center hosting facility could impair the delivery of our service and harm our business.
 

We currently serve our customers  from a third-party data center hos ng faci l i ty located in the United States . Any damage to, or fa i lure of, our systems general ly
could result in interrup ons in our service. As  we con nue to add capacity, we may move or transfer our data and our customers’ data. Despite precau ons taken during this
process , any unsuccessful  data transfers  may impair the del ivery of our service. Further, any damage to, or fa i lure of, our systems general ly could result in interrup ons in
our service. I nterrup ons in our service may reduce our revenue, cause us  to issue credits  or pay penal es , cause customers  to terminate their subscrip ons  and adversely
affect our renewal  rates  and our abi l i ty to a ract new customers. O ur bus iness  wi l l  a lso be harmed i f our customers  and poten al  customers  bel ieve our service is
unrel iable. 

 
As  part of our current disaster recovery arrangements , our produc on environment and al l  of our customers’ data is  currently repl icated in near real - me in a

separate faci l i ty phys ical ly located in a  different region of the United States . We do not control  the opera on of these faci l i es , and they are vulnerable to damage or
interrup on from earthquakes, floods, fires , power loss , telecommunica ons fa i lures  and s imi lar events . They may also be subject to break-ins , sabotage, inten onal  acts  of
vandal ism and s imi lar misconduct. Despite precau ons taken at these faci l i es , the occurrence of a  natural  disaster or an act of terrorism, a  decis ion to close the faci l i es
without adequate no ce or other unan cipated problems at these faci l i es  could result in lengthy interrup ons in our service. Even with the disaster recovery arrangements ,
our service could be interrupted.
   
If our security measures are breached and unauthorized access is obtained to a customer’s data, our data or our informa on technology systems, our service may be perceived
as not being secure, customers may curtail or stop using our service and we may incur significant legal and financial exposure and liabilities.
 

O ur service involves  the storage and transmiss ion of customers’ proprietary informa on, and securi ty breaches  could expose us  to a  risk of loss  of this  informa on,
l i ga on and poss ible l iabi l i ty. These securi ty measures  may be breached as  a  result of third-party ac on, including inten onal  misconduct by computer hackers , employee
error, malfeasance or otherwise during transfer of data to addi onal  data centers  or at any me, and result in someone obtaining unauthorized access  to our customers’
data or our data, including our intel lectual  property and other confiden al  bus iness  informa on, or our informa on technology systems. Addi onal ly, third par es  may
a empt to fraudulently induce employees  or customers  into disclos ing sens i ve informa on, such as  user names, passwords  or other informa on in order to gain access  to
our customers’ data or our data, including our intel lectual  property and other confiden al  bus iness  informa on, or our informa on technology systems. Because the
techniques  used to obtain unauthorized access , or to sabotage systems, change frequently and general ly are not recognized un l  launched against a  target, we may be unable
to an cipate these techniques  or to implement adequate preventa ve measures. Any securi ty breach could result in a  loss  of confidence in the securi ty of our service,
damage our reputation, disrupt our bus iness , lead to legal  l iabi l i ty and negatively impact our future sales .

 
Security breaches and other disruptions could compromise our information and expose us to liability, which would cause our business and reputation to suffer.
 

I n the ordinary course of our bus iness , we col lect and store sens i ve data, including intel lectual  property, our proprietary bus iness  informa on and that of our
customers, suppl iers  and bus iness  partners , and personal ly iden fiable informa on of our customers  and employees, in our data centers  and on our networks. The secure
process ing, maintenance and transmiss ion of this  informa on is  cri cal  to our opera ons and bus iness  strategy. Despite our securi ty measures, our informa on technology
and infrastructure may be vulnerable to a acks  by hackers  or breached due to employee error, malfeasance or other disrup ons. Any such breach could compromise our
networks  and the informa on stored there could be accessed, publ icly disclosed, lost or stolen. Any such access , disclosure or other loss  of informa on could result in legal
cla ims or proceedings, l iabi l i ty under laws that protect the privacy of personal  informa on, and regulatory penal es , disrupt our opera ons and the services  we provide to
customers, and damage our reputa on, and cause a loss  of confidence in our products  and services , which could adversely affect our bus iness/opera ng margins , revenues
and competitive pos ition.
 

The secure process ing, maintenance and transmiss ion of this  informa on is  cri cal  to our opera ons and bus iness  strategy, and we devote s ignificant resources  to
protecting our information. The expenses  associated with protecting our information could reduce our operating margins .
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Weakened global economic conditions may adversely affect our industry, business and results of operations.
 

The rate at which our customers  purchase new or enhanced services  depends on several  factors , including general  economic condi ons. The United States  and other
key interna onal  economies  have experienced in the past a  downturn in which economic ac vity was  impacted by fa l l ing demand for a  variety of goods and services ,
restricted credit, poor l iquidity, reduced corporate profi tabi l i ty, volati l i ty in credit, equity and foreign exchange markets , bankruptcies  and overal l  uncertainty with respect to
the economy. These condi ons  affect the rate of informa on technology spending and could adversely affect our customers’ abi l i ty or wi l l ingness  to purchase our enterprise
cloud compu ng services , delay prospec ve customers’ purchas ing decis ions, reduce the value or dura on of their subscrip on contracts  or affect renewal  rates , a l l  of
which could adversely affect our operating results .
 
COVID-19 could potentially affect our sales and disrupt our operations and could have a material adverse impact on the Company.
 

The global  COVI D-19 pandemic could adversely impact our opera ons or those of our customers. The extent to which COVI D-19 impacts  our opera ons and those of
our customers  wi l l  depend on future developments , which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with confidence. I f the publ ic con nues to avoid publ ic spaces,
including retai l  s tores , or i f we, or any of our customers  encounter any disrup ons to our or their respec ve opera ons, faci l i es  or stores , or i f our customers  were to
par al ly or ful ly shut down due to COVI D-19, then we or they may be prevented or delayed from effec vely opera ng our or their bus iness , respec vely, and the marke ng
and sale of our services  and our financial  results  could be adversely affected.
 
Risks Relating to Our Common Stock
 
Our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate in the future, which could result in volatility in our stock price.
 

O ur quarterly revenue and results  of opera ons have varied in the past and may fluctuate as  a  result of a  variety of factors . I f our quarterly revenue or results  of
opera ons fluctuate, the price of our Common Stock could decl ine substan al ly. F luctua ons in our results  of opera ons may be due to several  factors , including, but not
l imited to, those l i s ted and identi fied throughout this  “Risk Factors” section.
 
The limited public market for our stock may adversely affect an investor’s ability to liquidate an investment in us.
 

Al though our Common Stock is  currently quoted on the NAS DAQ  Capital  Market, there is  l imited trading ac vity. We can give no assurance that an ac ve market wi l l
develop, or i f developed, that i t wi l l  be sustained. I f an investor acquires  shares  of our Common Stock, the investor may not be able to l iquidate our shares  should there be a
need or des ire to do so.
  
Future issuances of our shares may lead to future dilu on in the value of our C ommon Stock, will lead to a reduc on in shareholder vo ng power and may prevent a change in
control.
 

The shares  may be substantia l ly di luted due to the fol lowing:
 
● issuance of Common Stock in connec on with funding agreements  with third par es  and future issuances  of Common Stock and the Company’s  P referred Stock, par

value $0.01 (“Preferred Stock ”) by the Board of Directors ; and
 

● the Board of Directors  has  the power to issue addi onal  shares  of Common Stock and P referred Stock and the right to determine the vo ng, dividend, convers ion,
l iquidation, preferences  and other conditions  of the shares  without shareholder approval .

 
Stock issuances  may result in reduc on of the book value or market price of outstanding shares  of Common Stock. I f we issue any addi onal  shares  of Common

Stock or P referred Stock, propor onate ownership of Common Stock and vo ng power wi l l  be reduced. Further, any new issuance of Common Stock or P referred Stock may
prevent a  change in control  or management.
  
Our officers and directors have significant control over us, which may lead to conflicts with other stockholders over corporate governance.
 

O ur officers  and directors  control  approximately 41% of our Common Stock. Randal l  K . F ields , our Chief Execu ve O fficer, controls  34% of our Common Stock.
Consequently, Mr. F ields , individual ly, and our officers  and directors , as  stockholders  ac ng together, can s ignificantly influence al l  ma ers  requiring approval  by our
stockholders , including the election of directors  and s igni ficant corporate transactions, such as  mergers  or other bus iness  combination transactions.
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O ur corporate charter contains authorized, unissued “blank check” Preferred Stock issuable without stockholder approval with the effect of dilu ng then current stockholder
interests.
 

O ur ar cles  of incorpora on currently authorize the issuance of up to 30,000,000 shares  of ‘blank check’ P referred Stock with des igna ons, rights , and preferences
as  may be determined from me to me by our Board of Directors , of which 700,000 shares  are currently des ignated as  Series  B Conver ble P referred Stock (“Series B
Preferred”) and 550,000 shares  are des ignated as  Series  B-1 P referred Stock (“Series B-1 P referred”). As  of June 30, 2021, a  total  of 625,375 shares  of Series  B P referred and
212,402 shares  of Series  B-1 Preferred were issued and outstanding.
 

O ur Board of Directors  i s  empowered, without stockholder approval , to issue one or more addi onal  series  of P referred Stock with dividend, l iquida on, convers ion,
vo ng, or other rights  that could di lute the interest of, or impair the vo ng power of, our Common Stockholders . The issuance of an addi onal  series  of P referred Stock could
be used as  a  method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a  change in control .
 
We have not paid dividends on our C ommon Stock, and investors should consider the poten al for us to pay dividends on our C ommon Stock as a factor when determining
whether to invest in us.
 

We have not paid dividends on our Common Stock and do not an cipate the declara on of any dividends pertaining to our Common Stock in the foreseeable future.
We intend to retain earnings , i f any, to finance the development and expansion of our bus iness . O ur Board of Directors  wi l l  determine our future dividend pol icy at their sole
discre on, and future dividends wi l l  be con ngent upon future earnings , i f any, obl iga ons of the stock issued, our financial  condi on, capital  requirements , general
bus iness  condi ons  and other factors . Future dividends may also be affected by covenants  contained in loan or other financing documents , which we may executed in the
future. Therefore, there can be no assurance that dividends wi l l  ever be paid on our Common Stock.
  
Our officers and directors have limited liability and indemnification rights under our organizational documents, which may impact our results.
 

Our officers  and directors  are required to exercise good fa i th and high integri ty in the management of our affa irs . Our articles  of incorporation and bylaws, however,
provide that the officers  and directors  shal l  have no l iabi l i ty to the stockholders  for losses  sustained or l iabi l i es  incurred which arise from any transac on in their
respec ve manageria l  capaci es  unless  they violated their duty of loyalty, did not act in good fa i th, engaged in inten onal  misconduct or knowingly violated the law,
approved an improper dividend or stock repurchase or derived an improper benefit from the transac on. As  a  result, an investor may have a more l imited right to ac on than
he would have had i f such a provis ion were not present. O ur ar cles  of incorpora on and bylaws also require us  to indemnify our officers  and directors  against any losses
or l iabi l i es  they may incur as  a  result of the manner in which they operate our bus iness  or conduct our internal  affairs , provided that the officers  and directors  reasonably
bel ieve such actions  to be in, or not opposed to, our best interests , and their conduct does  not consti tute gross  negl igence, misconduct or breach of fiduciary obl igations. 
 
ITEM 2. PRO ERTIES
 

Our principal  place of bus iness  operations  is  located at 5282 South Commerce Drive, Suite D292, Murray, Utah 84107. We lease approximately 10,000 square feet at
this  corporate office loca on, cons is ng primari ly of office space, conference rooms and storage areas. O ur telephone number is  (435) 645-2000. O ur website address  is
http://www.parkcitygroup.com.
 
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 

We are, from me to me, involved in various  legal  proceedings  incidental  to the conduct of our bus iness . Historical ly, the outcome of a l l  such legal  proceedings
has  not, in the aggregate, had a materia l  adverse effect on our bus iness , financial  condi on, results  of opera ons or l iquidity.  There are no pending or threatened materia l
legal  proceedings  at this  time.

 
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

 
Not appl icable.
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PA T II
 
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
 
Share Price History
 

O ur Common Stock is  traded on the NAS DAQ  Capital  Market under the trading symbol  “P C YG”. The fol lowing table sets  forth the high and low sales  prices  of our
Common Stock for the periods  indicated:
 
  Quarterly Common Stock Price Ranges  
  2021   2020  
Fiscal  Quarter Ended  High   Low   High   Low  
September 30  $ 5.45  $ 3.72  $ 8.25  $ 4.76 
December 31  $ 5.53  $ 3.80  $ 6.17  $ 4.27 
March 31  $ 7.91  $ 4.75  $ 5.73  $ 3.33 
June 30  $ 6.97  $ 4.80  $ 6.22  $ 3.40 
 
Dividend Policy
 

O utstanding shares  of Series  B P referred and Series  B-1 P referred each accrue dividends at the rate per share of 7% per annum i f paid by the Company in cash, and
9% per annum i f paid by the Company in addi onal  shares  of Series  B-1 P referred. Dividends on the Series  B P referred and Series  B-1 P referred are payable quarterly. To date,
the Company has  not paid dividends on i ts  Common Stock. Our present pol icy is  to retain future earnings  (i f any) for use in our operations  and the expansion of our bus iness .

 
Holders of Record
 

At June 30, 2021, there were 636 holders  of record of our Common Stock with 19,351,935 shares  issued and outstanding, 3 holders  of Series  B P referred with 625,375
shares  issued and outstanding, and 4 holders  of Series  B-1 P referred with 212,402 shares  issued and outstanding. The number of holders  of record and shares  of Common
Stock issued and outstanding was calculated by reference to the books  and records  of the Company’s  transfer agent.
 
Issuance of Securities
 

We issued shares  of our Common Stock in unregistered transac ons during fiscal  year 2021. Al l  of the shares  of Common Stock issued in non-registered
transac ons were issued in rel iance on Sec on 3(a)(9) and/or Sec on 4(a)(2) of the Securi es  Act of 1933, as  amended (the “Securi es A ct”) and were reported in our
Q uarterly Reports  on Form 10-Q  and in our Current Reports  on Form 8-K  filed with the S EC during the fiscal  year ended June 30, 2021. 40,217 shares  of Common Stock were
issued subsequent to June 30, 2021.
 
Share Repurchase Program
 

On May 9, 2019, our Board of Directors  approved of the repurchase of up to $4.0 mi l l ion shares  of our Common Stock, which repurchases  may be made in privately
nego ated transac ons or in the open market at prices  per share not exceeding the then-current market prices  (the “ Share Repurchase Program”). Under the Share Repurchase
P rogram, management has  discre on to determine the dol lar amount of shares  to be repurchased and the ming of any repurchases  in compl iance with appl icable laws and
regula ons, including Rule 12b-18 of the Exchange Act. O n March 17, 2020, given the extreme uncertainty due to COVI D-19 at the me, the Board suspended the Share
Repurchase Program.
 

O n May 18, 2021, our Board of Directors  resumed i ts  Share Repurchase P rogram, and increased the buyback from $4 mi l l ion to $6 mi l l ion. The Share Repurchase
P rogram expires  24 months  fol lowing May 18, 2021, and i t may be suspended for periods  of me or discon nued at any me, at the Board’s  discre on. The total  remaining
authoriza on for future shares  of Common Stock repurchases  under our Share Repurchase P rogram was $2,050,885 as  of June 30, 2021. From me-to- me, our Board may
authorize further increases  to our Share Repurchase Program.
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The fol lowing table provides  informa on about repurchases  of our Common Stock registered pursuant to Sec on 12 of the Exchange Act, during the years  ended June
30, 2021 and 2020: 

Period  (1)  

 
 

Total Number of
Shares

Purchased   
 

Average Price
Paid Per Share   

Total Number of
Shares

Purchased as
Part of Publicly

Announced
Plans or

Programs   

 
Remaining

Amount
Available for
Future Share
Repurchases

Under the Plans
or Programs  

             
Year Ended June 30, 2020:             
July 1, 2019 – September 30, 2019   79,954  $ 6.43   167,554  $ 3,000,235 
October 1, 2019 – December 31, 2019   174,615  $ 4.80   342,169  $ 2,162,557 
January 1, 2020 – March 31, 2020   157,616  $ 5.11   499,785  $ 1,359,123 
Apri l  1, 2020 – June 30, 2020   -   -   -  $ 1,359,123 
Year Ended June 30, 2021:                 
July 1, 2020 – September 30, 2020   -  $ -   -  $ 1,359,123 
October 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020   -  $ -   -  $ 1,359,123 
January 1, 2021 – March 31, 2021   84,081  $ 6.04   584,586  $ 2,850,880 
Apri l  1, 2021 – June 30, 2021   126,927  $ 6.30   457,659  $ 2,050,885 
 
(1) We close our books  and records  on the last calendar day of each month to a l ign our financial  clos ing with our bus iness  processes.
 
ITEM 6. SEL CTED FINANCIAL DATA
 

The disclosures  in this  section are not required because we qual i fy as  a  smal ler reporting company under federal  securi ties  laws.
  
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 

The following Management’s Discussion and A nalysis is intended to assist the reader in understanding our results of opera ons and financial condi on. Management’s
Discussion and A nalysis is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunc on with, our audited consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-1 of this
A nnual Report on Form 10-K  (this "A nnual Report"). This A nnual Report includes certain statements that may be deemed to be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Sec on 27A  of the Securi es A ct. A ll statements, other than statements of historical fact, included in this A nnual Report that address ac vi es, events or developments that we
expect, project, believe, or an cipate will or may occur in the future, including ma ers having to do with expected and future revenue, our ability to fund our opera ons and repay
debt, business strategies, expansion and growth of opera ons and other such ma ers, are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on certain assump ons and
analyses made by our management in light of its experience and its percep on of historical trends, current condi ons, expected future developments, and other factors it believes
are appropriate in the circumstances. These statements are subject to a number of assump ons, risks and uncertain es, including general economic and business condi ons, the
business opportuni es (or lack thereof) that may be presented to and pursued by us, our performance on our current contracts and our success in obtaining new contracts, our
ability to a ract and retain qualified employees, and other factors, many of which are beyond our control. You are cau oned that these forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and those actual results or developments may differ materially from those projected in such statements.
 
Overview
 

The Company is  a  Saa S provider, and the parent company of Reposi Trak, a  B2B e-commerce, compl iance, and supply chain management pla orm company that
partners  with retai lers , wholesalers , and product suppl iers  to help them source, vet, and transact with their suppl iers  in order to accelerate sales , control  risks , and improve
supply chain efficiencies . The Company’s  fi scal  year ends  on June 30. References  to fiscal  2021 refer to the fiscal  year ended June 30, 2021.
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Sources of Revenue

 
The principal  customers  for the Company’s  products  are mul -store retai l  chains , wholesalers  and distributors , and their suppl iers . The Company has  a  Hub and

Spoke bus iness  model , whereby the Company is  typical ly engaged by Hubs, which in turn require Spokes  to u l ize the Company’s  services . The Company derives  revenue from
five sources: (i ) subscription fees, (i i ) transaction based fees, (i i i ) profess ional  services  fees , (iv) l icense fees , and (v) hosting and maintenance fees
 

A s ignificant por on of the Company’s  revenue is  generated from i ts  Supply Chain solu ons and Compl iance and Food Safety solu ons in the form of recurring
subscrip on payments  from the suppl iers . Subscrip on fees  can be based on a nego ated flat fee per suppl ier, or some volumetric metric, such as  the number of stores , or
the volume of economic ac vity between a retai ler and i ts  suppl iers . Subscrip on revenue contains  arrangements  with customers  for use of the appl ica on, appl ica on and
data hosting, maintenance of the appl ication, and standard support.
 

Revenue from the Company’s  MarketP lace sourcing solu on is  transac onal , based on the volume of products  sourced via  the appl ica on. MarketP lace revenue can
come from several  sources  depending on the customer ’s  specific requirements . These include ac ng as  an agent for a  suppl ier, providing supply chain technology services ,
and enabl ing a  Hub to reduce i ts  number of new suppl iers  by acting as  the suppl ier for any number of products .
 

The Company also provides  profess ional  consul ng services  targe ng implementa on, assessments , profit op miza on and support func ons for i ts  appl ica ons
and related products , for which revenue is  recognized on a percentage-of-comple on or pro rata bas is  over the l i fe of the subscrip on, depending on the nature of the
engagement. P remier customer support includes  extended avai labi l i ty and addi onal  services  and is  avai lable a long with addi onal  support services  such as  developer
support and partner support for an addition fee.
 

I n some instances, the Company wi l l  sel l  i ts  so ware in the form of a  l icense. License arrangements  are a  me-specific and perpetual  l icense. So ware l icense
maintenance agreements  are typical ly annual  contracts , paid in advance or according to terms specified in the contract. W hen sold as  a  l icense, the Company’s  so ware, i s
usual ly accompanied by a  corresponding Maintenance and/or Hosting Agreement to support the service.
 

So ware maintenance agreements  provide the customer with access  to new so ware enhancements , maintenance releases, patches, updates  and technical  support
personnel . O ur hos ng services  provide remote management and maintenance of our so ware and customers’ data, which is  phys ical ly located in third-party
faci l i ties . Customers  access  ‘hosted’ software and data through a secure internet connection. 

Revenue Recognition
 

Effec ve July 1, 2018, we adopted the F inancial  Accoun ng Standards  Board’s  Accoun ng Standards  Update 2014-09: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic
606), and i ts  related amendments  (“ASU 2014-09”). AS U 2014-09 provides  a  unified model  to determine when and how revenue is  recognized and enhances  certain disclosure
around the nature, timing, amount and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows aris ing from customers.
 

AS U 2014-09 represents  a  change in the accoun ng model  u l ized for the recogni on of revenue and certain expense aris ing from contracts  with customers. We
adopted AS U 2014-09 us ing a  “modified retrospec ve” approach and, accordingly, revenue and expense totals  for a l l  periods  before July 1, 2018 reflect those previous ly
reported under the prior accounting model  and have not been restated.
 
 
 

-15-



Table of Contents
 
 
Other Metrics – Non-GAAP Financial Measures
 

To supplement our financial  s tatements , historical ly we have provided investors  with Adjusted EB I TDA and non-GAAP  income per share, both of which are non-GAAP
financial  measures. We bel ieve that these non-GAAP  measures  may provide useful  informa on regarding certain financial  and bus iness  trends  rela ng to our financial
condi on and opera ons. O ur management uses  these non-GAAP  measures  to compare the Company’s  performance to that of prior periods  for trend analyses  and planning
purposes. These measures  are a lso presented to our Board of Directors .

 
These non-GAAP  measures  should not be cons idered a subs tute for, or superior to, financial  measures  calculated in accordance with general ly accepted

accoun ng principles  in the United States  of America (“GAAP”). These non-GAAP  financial  measures  exclude s ignificant expenses  and income that are required by GAAP  to be
recorded in the Company’s  financial  s tatements  and are subject to inherent l imita ons. I nvestors  should review the reconci l ia ons  of non-GAAP  financial  measures  to the
comparable GAAP financial  measures  that are included in this  “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
 
Critical Accounting Policies
 

This  Management’s  Discuss ion and Analys is  of F inancial  Condi on and Results  of O pera ons discusses  the Company’s  financial  s tatements , which have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP. The prepara on of our financial  s tatements  requires  management to make es mates  and assump ons that affect reported amounts  of
assets  and l iabi l i es , the disclosure of con ngent assets  and l iabi l i es  at the date of the financial  s tatements  and the reported amount of revenue and expense during the
reporting period.
 

O n an ongoing bas is , management evaluates  i ts  es mates  and assump ons based on historical  experience of opera ons and on various  other factors  that are
bel ieved to be reasonable under the ci rcumstances, the results  of which form the bas is  for making judgments  about the carrying value of assets  and l iabi l i es  that are not
readi ly apparent from other sources. Actual  results  may di ffer from these estimates  under di fferent assumptions  or conditions.

 
Income Taxes
 

I n determining the carrying value of the Company’s  net deferred income tax assets , the Company must assess  the l ikel ihood of sufficient future taxable income in
certain tax jurisdic ons, based on es mates  and assump ons, to real ize the benefit of these assets . I f these es mates  and assump ons change in the future, the Company
may record a reduction in the valuation al lowance, resulting in an income tax benefi t in the Company’s  statements  of operations. Management evaluates  quarterly whether to
real ize the deferred income tax assets  and assesses  the valuation al lowance.

  
Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset Valuations
 

Goodwi l l  i s  ass igned to specific repor ng units  and is  reviewed for poss ible impairment at least annual ly or upon the occurrence of an event or when ci rcumstances
indicate that a  repor ng unit’s  carrying amount is  greater than i ts  fa i r value. Management reviews the long-l ived tangible and intangible assets  for impairment when events
or changes  in ci rcumstances  indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Management evaluates , at each balance sheet date, whether events  and
circumstances  have occurred which indicate poss ible impairment.
 

The carrying value of a  long-l ived asset i s  cons idered impaired when the an cipated cumula ve undiscounted cash flows of the related asset or group of assets  i s
less  than the carrying value. I n that event, a  loss  i s  recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the es mated fa ir market value of the long-l ived
asset. Economic useful  l ives  of long-l ived assets  are assessed and adjusted as  ci rcumstances  dictate. 
 
Stock-Based Compensation
 

The Company recognizes  the cost of employee services  received in exchange for awards  of equity instruments  based on the grant-date fa ir value of those awards. The
Company records  compensa on expense on a straight-l ine bas is . The fa ir value of any op ons granted are es mated at the date of grant us ing a  Black-Scholes  op on pricing
model  with assumptions  for the risk-free interest rate, expected l i fe, volati l i ty, dividend yield and forfei ture rate.
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Capitalization of Software Development Costs
 

The Company accounts  for research costs  of computer so ware to be sold, leased or otherwise marketed as  expense un l  technological  feas ibi l i ty has  been
establ ished for the product. O nce technological  feas ibi l i ty i s  establ ished, a l l  so ware costs  are capital ized un l  the product is  avai lable for general  release to customers.
Judgment is  required in determining when technological  feas ibi l i ty of a  product is  establ ished.
 

We have determined that technological  feas ibi l i ty for our so ware products  i s  reached shortly a er a  working prototype is  complete and meets  or exceeds des ign
specifica ons including func ons, features , and technical  performance requirements .  Costs  incurred a er technological  feas ibi l i ty i s  establ ished have been and wi l l
con nue to be capital ized un l  such me as  when the product or enhancement is  avai lable for general  release to customers. The Company capital ized so ware development
costs  of $171,733 in the fiscal  year ended June 30, 2021.
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 

The Company does  not have any off-balance sheet arrangements  that are reasonably l ikely to have a current or future effect on our financial  condi on, revenue and
results  of operation, l iquidity or capital  expenditures .
  
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 

I n August 2018, the FAS B issued AS U 2018-15 Intangibles – Goodwill and O ther Internal-Use So ware (Subtopic 350-40) – Customer’s A ccoun ng for Implementa on
Costs Incurred in a C loud Compu ng A rrangement That is a Service Contract. The amendments  in this  update apply to an en ty who is  a  customer in a  hos ng arrangement
accounted for as  a  service contract. The update requires  a  customer in a  hos ng arrangement to capital ize certain implementa on costs . Costs  associated with the
appl ica on development stage of the implementa on should be capital ized and costs  with the other stages  should be expensed. For instance, costs  for tra ining and data
convers ion should be expensed. The capital ized implementa on costs  should be expensed over the term of the hos ng arrangement, which is  the noncancelable period plus
periods  covered by an op on to extend i f the customer is  reasonably certain to exercise the op on. I mpairment of the capital ized costs  should be cons idered s imi lar to other
intangibles . The effec ve date of this  update is  effec ve for annual  repor ng periods  beginning a er December 15, 2019 for publ ic en es  and a er December 15, 2020 for
al l  other en es  with early adop on permi ed. The Company is  a  customer in a  hos ng arrangement and may enter into new arrangements  in the future. The Company
adopted the standard during the second quarter of fi scal  year 2020. This  standard did not have a materia l  impact on the Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements .

 
I n August 2018, the FAS B issued AS U 2018-13 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value

Measurement. This  AS U el iminates , amends, and adds  disclosure requirements  for fa i r value measurements . The new standard is  effec ve for fiscal  years  beginning a er
December 15, 2019, including interim periods  within those fiscal  years . The Company adopted the standard during the second quarter of fiscal  year 2020. This  standard did
not have a materia l  impact on the Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements .
 

I n June 2018, the FAS B issued AS U 2018-07 Compensa on – Stock Compensa on (Topic 718), Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment A ccoun ng. The
amendments  in this  update expand the scope of Topic 718 to include share-based payment transac ons for acquiring goods and services  from nonemployees. P rior to this
update, equity-based payments  to non-employees  was accounted for under Subtopic 505-50 resul ng in s ignificant differences  between the accoun ng for share-based
payments  to non-employees  as  compared to employees. O ne of the most s ignificant changes  is  that non-employee share-based awards  (class ified as  equity awards) may be
measured at grant-date fa ir value and not have to be con nual ly revalued un l  the service/goods are rendered. The update also indicates  that share-based awards  related to
financing and awards  granted to a  customer in conjunc on with sel l ing goods or services  are not included in Topic 718. This  standard is  effec ve for interim and annual
repor ng periods  beginning a er December 15, 2018 for publ ic en es  and December 15, 2019 for a l l  other en es. Early adop on is  permi ed, but no earl ier than an
en ty’s  adop on date of Topic 606. The Company adopted the standard during the first quarter of fiscal  year 2020. This  standard did not have a materia l  impact on the
Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements .
 

  I n January 2017, the FAS B issued AS U 2017-04 Intangibles-Goodwill and O ther (Topic 350): S implifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, which amends and s impl ifies
the accoun ng standard for goodwi l l  impairment. The new standard removes Step 2 of the goodwi l l  impairment test, which requires  a  hypothe cal  purchase price a l loca on.
A goodwi l l  impairment wi l l  now be the amount a  repor ng unit’s  carrying value exceeds i ts  fa i r value, l imited to the total  amount of goodwi l l  a l located to that repor ng unit.
The new standard is  effec ve for annual  and any interim impairment tests  for periods  beginning a er December 15, 2019. The Company adopted the standard during the
fourth quarter of fi scal  year 2020. This  standard did not have a materia l  impact on the Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements .
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I n February 2016, the FAS B issued AS U 2016-02 Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, lessees  wi l l  be required to recognize for a l l  leases  (with the excep on of
short-term leases) a  lease l iabi l i ty, which is  a  lessee’s  obl iga on to make lease payments  aris ing from a lease, measured on a discounted bas is  and a right-of-use asset,
which is  an asset that represents  the lessee’s  right to use, or control  the use of, a  speci fied asset for the lease term.
 

Effec ve July 1, 2019, the Company adopted the requirements  of Accoun ng Standards  Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) ("A S U 2016-02"). Al l  amounts  and
disclosures  set forth in this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K  have been updated to comply with this  new standard with results  for repor ng periods  beginning a er July 1, 2019
presented under ASU 2016-02, whi le prior period amounts  and disclosures  are not adjusted and continue to be reported under the accounting standards  in effect for the prior
period.
 
Results of Operations – Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
 
Revenue
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Revenue  $ 21,007,076  $ 969,022   5%  $ 20,038,054 
  

During the fiscal  year ended June 30, 2021, the Company had revenue of $21,007,076 compared to $20,038,054 for the year ended June 30, 2020, a  5% increase. The
increase in revenue was due to growth in both subscrip on revenue and Marketplace revenue, par al ly offset by approximately $145,500 in one- me l icense revenue that
occurred in 2020 that did not reoccur in 2021.
 

During fiscal  2021, as  COVI D-19 disrupted supply chains  and generated shortages  in products , our abi l i ty to source hard to find i tems for our customers  resulted in
increased revenue a ributable to MarketP lace. These products  largely cons isted of personel  protec ve equipment ("PPE") which includes  nitri le gloves, masks , freezers  and
telecommunica on equipment. W hi le the Company has  experienced a s ignificant increase in Marketplace revenue for P P E during the height of COVI D-19, i t i s  uncertain
whether demand for PPE wi l l  continue at the same level . As  a  result, we may experience reduced demand for MarketPlace attributable to PPE as  the pandemic begins  to abate.

 
Cost of Services and Product Support
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Cost of service and product support  $ 6,884,647  $ (112,777)   -2%  $ 6,997,424 
Percent of total  revenue   33%           35%
 

Cost of services  and product support was  $6,884,647 or 33% of total  revenue, and $6,997,424 or 35% of total  revenue for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respec vely, a  2% decrease. This  decrease is  primari ly the result of (i ) higher expense associated to MarketP lace and the sales  of P P E; and (i i ) an increase in
hardware/software non-capital ized i tems required for updating our information systems securi ty, maintaining equipment l icens ing and other database systems.

 
W hi le we have experienced a s ignificant increase in Marketplace costs  and corresponding revenue during the pandemic due to demand in P P E, i t i s  unclear what

level  of ongoing Marketplace costs  we may experience as  the pandemic begins  to abate.
 
Sales and Marketing Expense
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Sales  and marketing  $ 4,995,578  $ (779,731)   -14%  $ 5,775,309 
Percent of total  revenue   24%           29%
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The Company’s  sales  and marke ng expense was $4,995,578, or 24% of total  revenue, and $5,775,309, or 29% of total  revenue, for the fiscal  years  ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respec vely, a  14% decrease. This  decrease in sales  and marke ng expense is  due primari ly to a  decrease in variable compensa on, a  reduc on in trade
show expense, and lower sales  and marketing travel  expense.
 
General and Administrative Expense
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
General  and administrative  $ 5,214,936  $ 266,493   5%  $ 4,948,443 
Percent of total  revenue   25%           25%
 

The Company’s  general  and administra ve expense was $5,214,936, or 25% of total  revenue, and $4,948,443 or 25% of total  revenue for the years  ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respec vely, a  5% increase. General  and administra ve expense increased year over year due to an increase in bad debt expense and higher insurance
costs . These increases  were par al ly offset by lower general  overhead due to cost cu ng measures  and natural  reduc ons due to our “work from home” status  s ince Apri l  of
2020.
 
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Depreciation and amortization  $ 1,019,515  $ 180,649   22%  $ 838,866 
Percent of total  revenue   5%           4%
  

The Company’s  deprecia on and amor za on expense was $1,019,515 and $838,866 for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respec vely, a  22% increase. This
increase is  due to the expansion of new equipment for the Company’s  informa on technology infrastructure, bui ldout of our corporate headquarters , and expansion of our
data center completed in June 2020.
 
Other Income and Expense
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Other income and (expense)  $ 1,301,892  $ 1,144,716   728%  $ 157,176  
Percent of total  revenue   6%           1%
 

O ther income was $1,301,892 compared to $157,176 for the years  ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, respec vely, a  728% increase. O ther income increased due to
recogni on of a  gain on debt ex nguishment and higher interest income resul ng from an increase of total  cash held in short term investments  offset in part by the increase
in interest expense associated with financing arrangements  for equipment purchased under a  lease arrangement with a  bank.  The financing arrangement was paid off in
August 2020.
 
Preferred Dividends
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Preferred dividends  $ 586,444  $ -   -%  $ 586,444 
Percent of total  revenue   3%           3%

 
Dividends accrued on the Company’s  Series  B P referred and Series  B-1 P referred was $568,444 for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respec vely. Dividends

remained flat in the comparable periods. 
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Financial Position, Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

We bel ieve that our exis ng cash and short-term investments , together with funds  generated from opera ons, are sufficient to fund opera ng and investment
requirements  for at least the next twelve months. O ur future capital  requirements  wi l l  depend on many factors , including macroeconomic condi ons, our rate of revenue
growth, sales  and marketing activi ties , the timing and extent of spending required for research and development efforts  and the continuing market acceptance of our products
and services .
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Cash and Cash Equivalents  $ 24,070,322  $ 3,724,992   18%  $ 20,345,330 
    

We have historical ly funded our opera ons with cash from opera ons, equity financings , and borrowings  from the issuance of debt, including our exis ng l ine of
credit with U.S. Bank N.A.
 

Cash was $24,070,322 and $20,345,330 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respec vely. This  18% increase is  principal ly the result of growth in both so ware and
MarketPlace revenue, col lection of accounts  receivable, and extinguished debt.
 
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

 Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Cash provided by operating activi ties  $ 5,401,815  $ 1,205,676   29%  $ 4,196,139 
   

Net cash provided by operating activi ties  i s  summarized as  fol lows:
 
  2021   2020  
Net income  $ 4,117,395  $ 1,593,269 
Noncash expense and income, net   1,388,831   2,084,287 
Net changes  in operating assets  and l iabi l i ties   (104,411)   518,583 
  $ 5,401,815  $ 4,196,139 
 

Net cash provided by opera ng ac vi es  for the  year ended June 30, 2021 was $5,401,815 compared to net cash provided by in opera ng ac vi es  of $4,916,139
for the year ended June 30, 2020. Net cash provided by opera ng ac vi es  increased 29% due largely to higher revenues and lower opera ng costs . Noncash
expense decreased by $695,456 in the year ended June 30, 2021 compared to June 30, 2020 as  a  result of gain on debt ex nguishment and an increase in deprecia on and
amortization offset by a  decrease in stock compensation expense.

 
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Cash used in investing activi ties  $ (318,873)   331,549   -51%  $ (650,422)
 

Net cash used in inves ng ac vi es  for the  year ended June 30, 2021 was $318,873 compared to net cash used in inves ng ac vi es  of $650,422  for the year ended
June 30, 2020. This  decrease in cash used in inves ng ac vi es  for the year ended June 30, 2021 was primari ly due to the bui ldout of new Murray, UT headquarters  and
expansion of our data center that was  completed in 2020 that did not occur in the same period in 2021.
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Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities
 

  
Year Ended

June 30, 2021   
$

 Change   
%

Change   
Year Ended

June 30, 2020  
Cash used in financing activi ties  $ (1,357,950)  $ 451,860   -25%  $ (1,809,810)
  

Net cash used in financing activi ties  totaled $1,357,950 for the year ended June 30, 2021 compared to net cash used in financing activi ties  of $1,809,810 for the year
ended June 30, 2020. The decrease in net cash used in financing activi ties  i s  primari ly attributable to the August 2020 payoff of a  financing arrangement with a  bank partia l ly
offset by a  decrease in our stock buyback program.
   
Liquidity and Working Capital
 

At June 30, 2021, the Company had pos i ve working capital  of $20,400,991, as  compared with pos i ve working capital  of $ 18,236,664 at June 30, 2020.  This
$2,164,327 increase in working capital  i s  primari ly due to an increase in cash resulting from higher revenue. 
 

  
As of

June 30,   
As of

June 30,   Variance  
  2021   2020    Dollars    Percent  
Current assets  $ 29,701,774  $ 27,148,911  $ 2,552,863   9%
 

Current assets  as  of June 30, 2021 totaled $29,701,774, an increase of $2,552,863, as  compared to $27,148,911 as  of June 30, 2020. The increase in current assets  i s
primari ly a ributable to an increase in cash of $3,724,992, a  decrease in contract assets  and prepaid expense of $1,056,512 and a decrease in accounts  receivable of
$115,617.

 

  
As of

June 30,   
  As of

June 30,   Variance  
  2021    2020    Dollars    Percent   
Current l iabi l i ties  $ 9,300,783  $ 8,912,247  $ 388,536   4%

 
Current l iabi l i es  totaled $9,300,783 as  of June 30, 2021 as  compared to $8,912,247 as  of June 30, 2020. The compara ve increase in current l iabi l i es  i s  primari ly

a ributable to an increase of $1,340,000 in our l ine of credit, $161,356 decrease comprised of accrued l iabi l i es  and accounts  payable, offset by a  decrease of $790,108 of
current portion of the notes  payable and extinguished debt.
 

 W hi le no assurances  can be given, management currently bel ieves  that the Company wi l l  con nue to increase i ts  cash flow from opera ons and working capital
pos ition in subsequent periods, and that i t wi l l  have adequate cash resources  to fund i ts  operations  and satis fy i ts  debt obl igations  for at least the next 12 months.
 
Contractual Obligations
  

Total  contractual  obl igations  and commercial  commitments  as  of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the fol lowing table:
 
  Payment Due by Year  

  Total   
Less than 1

Year   1-3 Years   3-5 Years   
More than 5

Years  
Operating lease obl igations  $ 695,370  $ 90,156  $ 194,326  $ 214,783  $ 196,105 
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Inflation
 

The impact of infla on has  historical ly not had a materia l  effect on the Company’s  financial  condi on or results  from opera ons; however, higher rates  of infla on
may cause retai lers  to s low their spending in the technology area, which could have an impact on the Company’s  sales .
 
ITEM 7A. QU NTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

 
Each of our contracts  require payment in U.S. dol lars . We therefore do not engage in hedging transac ons to reduce our exposure to changes  in currency exchange

rates , a l though in the event any future contracts  are denominated in a  foreign currency, we may do so in the future. As  a  result, our financial  results  are not affected by
factors  such as  changes  in foreign currency exchange rates . 

  
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

  
The information required hereunder in this  Annual  Report i s  set forth in the financial  s tatements  and the notes  thereto beginning on Page F-1.
 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
 
None.
  

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
(a)  Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.
 

Under the supervis ion and with the par cipa on of our Management, including our principal  execu ve officer and principal  financial  officer, we conducted an
evalua on of the effec veness  of the des ign and opera ons of our disclosure controls  and procedures, as  defined in Rules  13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act,
as  of June 30, 2021. Based on this  evalua on, the Company’s  Chief Execu ve O fficer and Chief F inancial  O fficer concluded that our disclosure controls  and procedures  are
effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports  submitted under the Exchange Act i s  recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods  specified in S EC rules  and forms, including to ensure that informa on required to be disclosed by the Company is  accumulated and communicated to management,
including the principal  executive officer and principal  financial  officer, as  appropriate to a l low timely decis ions  regarding required disclosure.
 
(b)  Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.  
 

We are responsible for establ ishing and maintaining adequate internal  control  over financial  repor ng (as  defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act). O ur
internal  control  over financial  repor ng is  a  process  des igned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rel iabi l i ty of financial  repor ng and the prepara on of
financial  s tatements  for external  purposes  of GAAP.

 
Because of i ts  inherent l imitations, internal  control  over financial  reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements . Therefore, even those systems determined to be

effective can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their control  objectives .
 

Management is  responsible for establ ishing and maintaining adequate internal  control  over financial  repor ng for the Company. W ith our par cipa on, an
evalua on of the effec veness  of our internal  control  over financial  repor ng was conducted as  of June 30, 2021, based on the framework and cri teria  establ ished in
I nternal  Control  I ntegrated Framework (2013) issued by the Commi ee of Sponsoring O rganiza ons of the Treadway Commiss ion. Based on this  evalua on, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial  Officer concluded that our internal  control  over financial  reporting was effective as  of June 30, 2021.
 
(c)  Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting.  

 
O ur Chief Execu ve O fficer and Chief F inancial  O fficer have determined that there has  been no change, in the Company’s  internal  control  over financial  repor ng

during the period covered by this  report iden fied in connec on with the evalua on described in the above paragraph that have materia l ly affected, or are reasonably l ikely
to materia l ly affect, Company’s  internal  control  over financial  reporting.

 
ITEM 9B. OT ER INFORMATION
 

 None.  
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PA T III

 
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
 

The informa on required by this  i tem wi l l  be incorporated by reference from Park C ity Group, I nc.’s  defini ve proxy statement, to be filed with the Securi es  and
Exchange Commiss ion on or before October 28, 2021.
 
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
 

The informa on required by this  i tem wi l l  be incorporated by reference from Park C ity Group, I nc.’s  defini ve proxy statement, to be filed with the Securi es  and
Exchange Commiss ion on or before October 28, 2021.
 
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
 

The informa on required by this  i tem wi l l  be incorporated by reference from Park C ity Group, I nc.’s  defini ve proxy statement, to be filed with the Securi es  and
Exchange Commiss ion on or before October 28, 2021.
 
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
 

The informa on required by this  i tem wi l l  be incorporated by reference from Park C ity Group, I nc.’s  defini ve proxy statement, to be filed with the Securi es  and
Exchange Commiss ion on or before October 28, 2021.
 
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
 

The informa on required by this  i tem wi l l  be incorporated by reference from Park C ity Group, I nc.’s  defini ve proxy statement, to be filed with the Securi es  and
Exchange Commiss ion on or before October 28, 2021.
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PAR  IV
 
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
 
Exhibits, Financial Statements and Schedules
 

Exhibit
Number

 
Description

3.1  Articles  of Incorporation (Incorporated by reference from the Company’s  Defini tive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14C dated June 5, 2002). (1)

3.2  Cer ficate of Amendment (I ncorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s  Q uarterly Report on Form 10-Q S B for the quarter ended Sept 30,
2005, dated November 10, 2005). (2)

3.3  Cer ficate of Amendment (I ncorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.4 to the Company’s  Annual  Report on Form 10-KS B for the year ended June 30, 2006,
dated September 29, 2006). (3)

3.4  Certi ficate of Amendment (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 28, 2017). (13)

3.5  Amended and Restated Bylaws (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 21, 2016). (11)

4.1  Cer ficate of Des igna on of the Series  B Conver ble P referred Stock (I ncorporated by reference from  Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s  Current Report on
Form 8-K dated July 21, 2010). (4)

4.2  Fourth Amended and Restated Cer ficate of Des igna on of the Rela ve Rights , Powers  and P references  of the Series  B P referred Stock of Park C ity Group,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 14, 2016). (10)

4.3  F i rst Amended and Restated Cer ficate of Des igna on of the Rela ve Rights , Powers  and P references  of the Series  B-1 P referred Stock of Park C ity Group,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 14, 2016). (10)

10.1  Amendment to Loan Agreement and Note, by and between U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on and the Company, dated September 15, 2009 (I ncorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 30, 2009). (5)

10.2  Amendment to Loan Agreement and Note, by and between U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on and the Company, dated May 5, 2010 (I ncorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 6, 2010). (6)

10.3  Second Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan, dated Apri l  1, 2013 (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s  Registration
Statement on Form S-8, dated September 4, 2013). (7)

10.4  Second Amended and Restated 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, dated Apri l  1, 2013 (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, dated September 4, 2013). (7)

10.5  Fields  Employment Agreement (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s  Annual  Report on Form 10-K dated September 11, 2014). (9)

10.6  Services  Agreement (Incorporated by reference from the Company’s  Form 10-K dated September 11, 2014).(9)

10.7  Amendment No. 1 to the Employment Agreement, by and between Park C ity Group, I nc., Randal l  K . F ields  and Fields  Management, I nc., dated July 1, 2016
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated November 7, 2016). (12)

10.8  Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended and Restated 2011 Stock I ncen ve P lan of Park C ity Group, I nc., dated August 3, 2017 (I ncorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s  Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated November 9, 2017) (15)

10.9  Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended and Restated 2011 Employee Stock P urchase P lan of Park C ity Group, I nc., dated August 3, 2017 (I ncorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s  Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated November 9, 2017) (15)

10.10  Amendment to Services  Agreement  (I ncorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s  Q uarterly Report on Form 10-Q  dated May 10, 2018).
(16)

10.11  Amendment to Note, by and between U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on and the Company, dated January 9, 2019 (I ncorporated by reference from Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 15, 2019). (17)

10.12  Master Lease Agreement, dated January 9, 2019 (I ncorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K  dated January
15, 2019). (17)

10.13  Employment Agreement by and between John Merri l l  and Park C ity Group, I nc., dated May 29, 2019 (I ncorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 31, 2019). (18)

10.14  Loan Agreement by and between U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on and the Company, dated Apri l  23, 2020 (I ncorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company’s  Current Report on Form 8-K dated Apri l  27, 2020). (19)

10.15  Amendment No. 2 to the Second Amended and Restated 2011 Employee Stock P urchase P lan of Park C ity Group, I nc., dated March 17, 2021 (I ncorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s  Form S-8 dated Apri l  12, 2021). (20)

14.1  Code of Ethics  and Bus iness  Conduct (I ncorporated by reference from the Company’s  Annual  Report Form 10-KS B for the period ended June 30, 2008,
dated September 29, 2008). (8)

21  List of Subs idiaries  (I ncorporated by reference from the Company’s  Annual  Report on Form 10-K  for the period ended June 30, 2017, dated September 13,
2017). (14)

23.1  Consent of Haynie & Company, dated September 28, 2021*
31.1  Certi fication of Principal  Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes  Oxley Act of 2002 *
31.2  Certi fication of Principal  Financial  Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes  Oxley Act of 2002 *
32.1  Certi fication of Principal  Executive Officer and Principal  Financial  Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 *

 
(1) Incorporated by reference from our Form DEF 14C dated June 5, 2002.
(2) Incorporated by reference from our Form 10-QSB for the year ended Sept 30, 2005.
(3) Incorporated by reference from our Form 10-KSB dated September 29, 2006.
(4) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated July 21, 2010.
(5) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated September 30, 2009.
(6) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated May 6, 2010.
(7) Incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated September 4, 2013.
(8) Incorporated by reference from our Form 10-KSB dated September 29, 2008.
(9) Incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K dated September 11, 2014.
(10) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated January 14, 2016.
(11) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated October 21, 2016.
(12) Incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Q dated November 7, 2016.
(13) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated July 28, 2017.
(14) Incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K dated September 13, 2017.
(15) Incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated November 9, 2017.
(16) Incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Q dated May 10, 2018.
(17) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated January 15, 2019.
(18) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated May 31, 2019.
(19) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated Apri l  27, 2020.
(20) Incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dated Apri l  12, 2021.
* Fi led herewith
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SIGN TURES
 

 In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this  report to be s igned on i ts  behal f by the unders igned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
 PARK CITY GROUP, INC.
            (Registrant)

 
Date:    September 28, 2021 By:  /s/ Randal l  K.  Fields
 Principal  Executive Officer,

Chair of the Board and Director
 

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this  report has  been s igned below by the fol lowing persons  on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities  and on the dates
indicated.
 

Signature Title Date
   
/s/ Randal l  K. Fields Chair of the Board and Director, September 28, 2021
Randal l  K. Fields Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal  Executive Officer)
 

 

/s/ John Merri l l Chief Financial  Officer September 28, 2021
John Merri l l (Principal  Financial  Officer &

Principal  Accounting Officer)
 

 

/s/ Robert W. Al len Director, and Compensation September 28, 2021
Robert W. Al len Committee Chair

 
 

/s/ Peter J. Larkin Director September 28, 2021
Peter J. Larkin
 

  

/s/ Ronald C. Hodge Director, and Audit Committee Chair September 28, 2021
Ronald C. Hodge   
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REP RT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 
To the Board of Directors  and
Stockholders  of Park City Group, Inc.
 
Opinion on the Financial Statements
 
We have audited the accompanying consol idated balance sheets  of Park C ity Group, I nc. (the Company) as  of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements  of income,
stockholders ’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years  in the two-year period ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes  (col lec vely referred to as  the financial
statements). I n our opinion, the financial  s tatements  present fa i rly, in a l l  materia l  respects , the financial  pos i on of the Company as  of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the
results  of i ts  opera ons and i ts  cash flows for each of the years  in the two-year period ended June 30, 2021, in conformity with accoun ng principles  general ly accepted in
the United States  of America.
 
Basis for Opinion
 
These financial  s tatements  are the responsibi l i ty of the Company’s  management. O ur responsibi l i ty i s  to express  an opinion on the Company’s  financial  s tatements  based on
our audits . We are a  publ ic accoun ng firm registered with the P ubl ic Company Accoun ng O vers ight Board (United States) (P C AO B) and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal  securi es  laws and the appl icable rules  and regula ons  of the Securi es  and Exchange Commiss ion and the
PCAOB.
 
We conducted our audits  in accordance with the standards  of the P C AO B. Those standards  require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial  s tatements  are free of materia l  misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is  not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an
audit of i ts  internal  control  over financial  repor ng. As  part of our audits , we are required to obtain an understanding of internal  control  over financial  repor ng, but not for
the purpose of express ing an opinion on the effectiveness  of the Company’s  internal  control  over financial  reporting. Accordingly, we express  no such opinion.
 
O ur audits  included performing procedures  to assess  the risks  of materia l  misstatement of the financial  s tatements , whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures  that respond to those risks . Such procedures  included examining, on a test bas is , evidence regarding the amounts  and disclosures  in the financial  s tatements .
O ur audits  a lso included evalua ng the accoun ng principles  used and s ignificant es mates  made by management, as  wel l  as  evalua ng the overal l  presenta on of the
financial  s tatements . We bel ieve that our audits  provide a reasonable bas is  for our opinion.
 
Critical Audit Matters
 
The cri cal  audit ma ers  communicated below are ma ers  aris ing from the current period audit of the financial  s tatements  that were communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit commi ee and that: (1) relate to accounts  or disclosures  that are materia l  to the financial  s tatements  and (2) involved our especial ly chal lenging,
subjec ve, or complex judgments . The communica on of cri cal  audit ma ers  does  not a l ter in any way our opinion on the financial  s tatements , taken as  a  whole, and we
are not, by communicating the cri tical  audit matters  below, providing separate opinions  on the cri tical  audit matters  or on the accounts  or disclosures  to which they relate.
 
Revenue Recognition – Multiple Element Arrangements
 

Description of the Matter:
 

The Company recognized approximately $21 mi l l ion in revenue during the year ended June 30, 2021. As  discussed in Note 2 to the financial  s tatements , the Company
enters  into several  different types  of revenue arrangements  that o en cons ist of mul ple performance obl iga ons. Management must use judgment to determine the
appropriate value and al location of revenue to these performance obl igations.

 
Audi ng management’s  assump ons and judgments  can be complex, involves  judgment, and requires  a  thorough understanding of the Company’s  various  revenue
streams.

 
How We Addressed the Matter in Our Audit:

 
We obtained and reviewed documenta on to support the revenue recogni on cri teria. We tested performance obl iga ons by reviewing the underlying contracts ,
evalua ng management’s  determina on of the method and ming of measuring revenue, and tes ng management’s  a l loca on of revenue to the performance
obl iga ons. Lastly, we tested the des ign and opera ng effec veness  of internal  controls  over the revenue cycle as  wel l  as  the I nforma on Technology General
Controls  as  these heavi ly impact the revenue cycle.

 
 
Haynie & Company
Salt Lake City, Utah
September 28, 2021
 
We have served as  the Company’s  auditor s ince 2016.
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PA K CITY GROUP, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

  

Assets  
June 30,

2021   
June 30,

2020  
Current Assets       

Cash  $ 24,070,322  $ 20,345,330 
Receivables , net of a l lowance for doubtful  accounts  of $234,693 and $251,954 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively   3,891,699   4,007,316 
Contract asset – unbi l led current portion   1,248,936   2,300,754 
Prepaid expense and other current assets   490,817   495,511 

         
Total Current Assets   29,701,774   27,148,911 
         
Property and equipment, net   2,589,194   3,003,402 
         
Other Assets:         

Deposits , and other assets   22,414   22,414 
Prepaid expense – less  current portion   47,987   77,030 
Contract asset – unbi l led long-term portion   408,925   838,726 
Operating lease – right-of-use asset   695,371   781,137 
Customer relationships   525,600   657,000 
Goodwi l l   20,883,886   20,883,886 
Capital ized software costs , net   171,732   18,539 

         
Total Other Assets   22,755,915   23,278,732 
         
Total Assets  $ 55,046,883  $ 53,431,045 
         
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity         
Current liabilities         

Accounts  payable  $ 467,194  $ 407,497 
Accrued l iabi l i ties   988,092   1,123,528 
Contract l iabi l i ty - deferred revenue   1,755,341   1,845,347 
Lines  of credit   6,000,000   4,660,000 
Operating lease l iabi l i ty - current   90,156   85,767 
Current portion of notes  payable   -   310,242 
Current portion of paycheck protection program loans   -   479,866 

         
Total current liabilities   9,300,783   8,912,247 
         
Long-term liabilities         

Operating lease l iabi l i ty – less  current portion   605,214   695,369 
Notes  payable, less  current portion   -   610,512 
Paycheck protection program loans   -   629,484 

         
Total liabilities   9,905,997   10,847,612 
         
Commitments and contingencies         
         
Stockholders’ equity:         

Preferred Stock; $0.01 par value, 30,000,000 shares  authorized;         
Series  B Preferred, 700,000 shares  authorized; 625,375 shares  issued and outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020;   6,254   6,254 
Series  B-1 Preferred, 550,000 shares  authorized; 212,402 shares  issued and outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively   2,124   2,124 

Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares  authorized; 19,351,935 and 19,484,485 issued and outstanding at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively   193,522   194,847 
Additional  paid-in capital   74,298,924   75,271,097 
Accumulated defici t   (29,359,938)   (32,890,889)

         
Total stockholders’ equity   45,140,886   42,583,433 
         
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 55,046,883  $ 53,431,045 

 
See accompanying notes  to consol idated financial  s tatements .
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PARK CITY G OUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

 
  For the Years Ended June 30,  
  2021   2020  
       
Revenue  $ 21,007,076  $ 20,038,054 
         
Operating expense:         
Cost of revenue and product support   6,884,647   6,997,424 
Sales  and marketing   4,995,578   5,775,309 
General  and administrative   5,214,936   4,948,443 
Depreciation and amortization   1,019,515   838,866 
Total  operating expense   18,114,676   18,560,042 
         
Income from operations   2,892,400   1,478,012 
         
Other income (expense):         
Interest income   237,269   224,908 
Interest expense   (106,680)   (67,732)
Unreal ized gain on short term investments   61,953   - 
Gain on debt extinguishment   1,109,350   - 
         
Income before income taxes   4,194,292   1,635,188 
         
(Provis ion) for income taxes   (76,897)   (41,919)
         
Net income   4,117,395   1,593,269 
         
Dividends on Preferred Stock   (586,444)   (586,444)
         
Net income appl icable to common shareholders  $ 3,530,951  $ 1,006,825 
         
Weighted average shares , bas ic   19,502,000   19,651,000 
Weighted average shares , di luted   19,754,000   19,863,000 
Bas ic earnings  per share  $ 0.18  $ 0.05 
Di luted earnings  per share  $ 0.18  $ 0.05 
 

See accompanying notes  to consol idated financial  s tatements .
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PARK CITY GROUP, INC. A D SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

 

  
 Series B

Preferred Stock   
 Series B-1

Preferred Stock    Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In   Accumulated    
  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Capital   Deficit   Total  
                            
Balance, June 30, 2019   625,375   6,254   212,402   2,124   19,793,372   197,936   76,908,566   (33,897,714)   43,217,166 
                                     
Stock issued for:                                     
Accrued compensation   -   -   -   -   76,575   766   396,223   -   396,989 
Cash   -   -   -   -   26,723   267   120,657   -   120,924 
Preferred Dividends-Declared   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (586,444)   (586,444)
Stock Buyback   -   -   -   -   (412,185)   (4,122)   (2,154,349)   -   (2,158,471)
Net income   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   1,593,269   1,593,269 
Balance, June 30, 2020   625,375  $ 6,254   212,402  $ 2,124   19,484,485  $ 194,847  $75,271,097  $(32,890,889)  $42,583,433 
                                     
Stock issued for:                                     
Accrued compensation   -   -   -   -   46,376   464   216,789   -   217,253 
Cash   -   -   -   -   32,082   321   117,166   -   117,487 
Preferred Dividends-Declared   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (586,444)   (586,444)
Stock Buyback   -   -   -   -   (211,008)   (2,110)   (1,306,128)   -   (1,308,238)
Net income   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   4,117,395   4,117,395 
Balance, June 30, 2021   625,375  $ 6,254   212,402  $ 2,124   19,351,935  $ 193,522  $74,298,924  $(29,359,938)  $45,140,886 

  
See accompanying notes  to consol idated financial  s tatements .
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PARK CITY GROUP, INC. A D SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

 
  For the Years Ended June 30,  
  2021   2020  
Cash flows from operating activi ties :       
Net income  $ 4,117,395  $ 1,593,269 
Adjustments  to reconci le net income to net cash provided by operating activi ties :         

Depreciation and amortization   1,019,515   803,002 
Amortization of operating right of use asset   85,766   81,604 
Stock compensation expense   336,695   399,681 
Bad debt expense   1,056,205   800,000 
Gain on debt extinguishment   (1,109,350)   - 
Decrease (increase) in:         

Trade receivables   (199,437)   (205,718)
Long-term receivables , prepaids  and other assets   465,978   1,279,674 

Increase (decrease) in:         
Accounts  payable   59,697   (122,797)
Accrued l iabi l i ties   (254,601)   (278,255)
Operating lease l iabi l i ty   (85,766)   (81,605)
Deferred revenue   (90,282)   (72,716)

         
Net cash provided by operating activi ties   5,401,815   4,196,139 

         
Cash flows from investing activi ties :         
     Purchase of property and equipment   (147,140)   (650,422)

 Capital ization of software development costs   (171,733)   - 
         
     Net cash used in investing activi ties   (318,873)   (650,422)
         
Cash flows from financing activi ties :         
     Proceeds from employee stock purchase plans   117,487   120,923 
     Proceeds from issuance of note payable   -   1,109,350 
     Net increase in l ines  of credit   1,340,000   - 
     Dividends paid   (586,444)   (586,444)
     Common stock buy-back   (1,308,238)   (2,158,471)
     Payments  on notes  payable and capital  leases   (920,755)   (295,168)
         
     Net cash used in financing activi ties   (1,357,950)   (1,809,810)
         
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents   3,724,992   1,735,907 
         
Cash and cash equivalents  at beginning of period   20,345,330   18,609,423 
         
Cash and cash equivalents  at end of period  $ 24,070,322  $ 20,345,330 
         
Supplemental  Disclosure of Cash Flow Information         
Cash paid for income taxes  $ 167,185  $ 100,158 
Cash paid for interest  $ 103,411  $ 16,042 
         
Supplemental  Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activi ties         
Common Stock to pay accrued l iabi l i ties  $ 217,253  $ 396,989 
Dividends accrued on Preferred Stock  $ 586,444  $ 586,444 
Right-of-use asset  $ -  $ 862,741 
 

See accompanying notes  to consol idated financial  s tatements .
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PA K CITY GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020
 
NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
 
Summary of Business
 

Park C ity Group, I nc., a  Nevada corpora on (“Park C ity Group”, “We”, “us”, “our” or the “Company”) i s  a  So ware-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) provider, and the parent
company of Reposi Trak, I nc., a  Utah corpora on (“ReposiTrak”) which operates  a  bus iness-to-bus iness  (“B2B”) e-commerce, compl iance, and supply chain management
platform that partners  with retai lers , wholesalers , and product suppl iers  to help them source, vet, and transact with their suppl iers  in order to accelerate sales , control  risks ,
and improve supply chain efficiencies , and source hard-to-get-things.
 

 The Company’s  services  are grouped in three appl ica on suites : (i ) Reposi Trak MarketP lace (“MarketPlace”), encompass ing the Company’s  suppl ier discovery and
B2B e-commerce solu ons, which helps  the Company’s  customers  find new suppl iers , (i i ) Reposi Trak Compl iance and Food Safety (“Compliance and Food Safety”) solu ons,
which help the Company’s  customers  vet suppl iers  to mi gate the risk of doing bus iness  with these suppl iers , and (i i i ) Reposi Trak’s  Supply Chain (“Supply Chain”) solu ons,
which help the Company’s  customers  to more efficiently manage their various  transactions  with their suppl iers .
 
Recent Developments
 

During the second hal f of fiscal  year 2021, Reposi Trak launched two new products  des igned to expand market share in the manufacturing segment: Cer ficate of
Analys is  Automa on and Ac ve-Q M S for Q ual i ty Management. Both solu ons were developed at the request of exis ng Compl iance Management Solu on customers  and
improve compe veness  in the manufacturing/food supply chain with synergis c solu ons for growth in exis ng customers  and increas ing compe veness  for new
business  focused on qual i ty management.
 

The qual i ty management solution also has  appl ication in the retai l  sector, in central  commissaries , distribution centers , and even task management in stores .
 

Another major new product ini a ve commenced in February 2021, as  Reposi Trak joined with a  group of major retai lers  and wholesalers  to form the Food
Traceabi l i ty Leadership Consor um (F TLC), in response to the F DA’s  announcement regarding the increase of food traceabi l i ty requirements  under the Food Safety
Moderniza on Act. The expanded traceabi l i ty requirements  proposed by the F DA have far reaching consequences  for the US food supply chain, from farms to fisheries  down
to retai l  s tores , due to new, detai led documentation requirements  des igned to support more effective recal ls .
 

These new proposed requirements  create substan al  data and records  management chal lenges  for a l l  supply chain trading partners , many of whom do not have this
capabi l i ty today. The risk is  that the supply chain wi l l  become frac ous  array of inoperable systems that could lead to mass ive opera onal  complexity and expense
escala on. The F TLC founding members  worked col labora vely with Reposi Trak to develop a complete food traceabi l i ty solu on that meets  a l l  the F DA FS M A proposed
repor ng requirements  at a  very large manageable cost, based on the Reposi Trak supply chain pla orm which tracks  product/shipment data in a  s imi lar manner today for
cost and inventory control  purposes.
 

The new solu on, cal led the Reposi Trak Traceabi l i ty Network, i s  launching in September 2021 with phased rol l  outs  at suppl iers  and retai lers , and is  expected to
scale rapidly through out fi scal  year 2022, based on the existing Compl iance Management user network.
 

COVID-19. There are many uncertain es  regarding COVI D-19, and the Company is  closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on al l  aspects  of i ts  bus iness ,
including how i t wi l l  impact i ts  services , customers, employees, vendors , and bus iness  partners . W hi le the pandemic did not materia l ly adversely affect the Company’s
financial  results  and bus iness  opera ons during the fiscal  years  ended June 30, 2021 or June 30, 2020, we are unable to predict the impact that COVI D-19 wi l l  have on i ts
future financial  pos i on and opera ng results  due to numerous uncertain es. The Company expects  to con nue to assess  the evolving impact of COVI D-19 and intends to
make adjustments  to i ts  responses  accordingly.
 

Paycheck P rotec on Loan. O n Apri l  23, 2020, the Company received proceeds from a loan in the amount of approximately $1.1 mi l l ion from i ts  lender, U.S. Bank
National  Association (the “Lender”), pursuant to approval  by the U.S. Smal l  Bus iness  Administra on (the “SBA”) for the Lender to fund the Company’s  request for a  loan under
the S BA’s  Paycheck P rotec on P rogram (“PPP Loan”) created as  part of the C AR ES Act administered by the S BA. O n December 19, 2020, the S BA authorized ful l  forgiveness  in
the amount of approximately $1.1 mi l l ion under the P P P  Loan, and the Company wi l l  not need to make any payments  on the P P P  Loan that U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on
faci l i tates  as  an S BA lender. U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on has  appl ied the forgiveness  amount the S BA authorized, plus  a l l  accrued interest, to the Company’s  P P P  Loan. The
requirements  under this  program are establ ished by the SBA. Al l  requests  for PPP Loan forgiveness  are subject to SBA el igibi l i ty.
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NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
Principles of Consolidation
 

The financial  s tatements  presented herein reflect the consol idated financial  pos i on of Park C ity Group and our Subs idiaries . Al l  inter-company transac ons and
balances  have been el iminated in consol idation. 
 
Use of Estimates
 

The prepara on of consol idated financial  s tatements  in conformity with U.S. general ly accepted accoun ng principles  (“GAAP”) requires  management to make
es mates  and assump ons that materia l ly affect the amounts  reported in the consol idated financial  s tatements . Actual  results  could differ from these es mates. The
methods, es mates, and judgments  the Company uses  in applying i ts  most cri cal  accoun ng pol icies  have a s ignificant impact on the results  i t reports  in i ts  financial
statements . The Securi es  and Exchange Commiss ion (the “SEC”) has  defined the most cri cal  accoun ng pol icies  as  those that are most important to the portrayal  of the
Company’s  financial  condi on and results  and require the Company to make i ts  most difficult and subjec ve judgments , o en because of the need to make es mates  of
ma ers  that are inherently uncertain. Based on this  defini on, the Company’s  most cri cal  accoun ng pol icies  include revenue recogni on, goodwi l l , other long-l ived asset
valuations, income taxes, s tock-based compensation, and capital ization of software development costs .
  
Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

 
The Company maintains  cash in bank deposit accounts , which, at mes, may exceed federal ly insured l imits . The Company has  not experienced any losses  in such

accounts  and bel ieves  i t i s  not exposed to any s ignificant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents . F inancial  instruments , which poten al ly subject the Company to
concentra on of credit risk, cons ist primari ly of trade receivables . I n the normal  course of bus iness , the Company provides  credit terms to i ts  customers. Accordingly, the
Company performs ongoing evalua ons of i ts  customers  and maintains  a l lowances  for poss ible losses . The provis ion is  based on the overal l  composi on of our accounts
receivable aging, our prior history of accounts  receivable write-offs , and our experience with speci fic customers.
 

O ther factors  indica ng s ignificant risk include customers  that have filed for bankruptcy or customers  for which we have less  payment history to rely upon. We rely
on historical  trends  of bad debt as  a  percentage of total  revenue and apply these percentages  to the accounts  receivable which when real ized have been within the range of
management’s  expectations. The Company does  not require col lateral  from i ts  customers.

  
The Company’s  accounts  receivable are derived from sales  of products  and services  primari ly to customers  opera ng mul loca on retai l  and grocery stores . The

Company writes  off accounts  receivable when they are determined to be uncol lectible. Changes  in the al lowances  for doubtful  accounts  are recorded as  bad debt expense and
are included in general  and administra ve expense in our consol idated financial  s tatements . Amounts  that have been invoiced are recorded in accounts  receivable (current
and long-term), and in deferred revenue or revenue, depending on whether the revenue recognition cri teria  have been met.
 

The Company had two customers  that accounted for greater than 10% of accounts  receivable at June 30, 2021. Customer A had a balance of $967,300 and $0 and
customer B had a balance of $404,155 and $122,000, for June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively.
 
Prepaid Expense and Other Current Assets
 

P repaid expense and other current assets  include amounts  for which payment has  been made but the services  have not yet been consumed. The Company’s  prepaid
expense is  made up primari ly of prepayments  for hosted so ware appl ica ons  used in the Company’s  opera ons, maintenance agreements  on hardware and so ware, and
other miscel laneous amounts  for insurance, membership fees  and profess ional  fees . P repaid expense is  amor zed on a pro-rata bas is  to expense accounts  as  the services
are consumed typical ly by the passage of time or as  the service is  used.
 
 Depreciation and Amortization
 
 
 

F-7



Table of Contents
 
 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment is  computed us ing the straight-l ine method based on the fol lowing estimated useful  l ives:
 
  Years  
Furniture and fixtures     5-7 

Computer equipment     3 

Equipment under capital  leases     3 

Long-term use equipment     10 
Leasehold improvements See below
 

Leasehold improvements  are amortized over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful  l i fe of the improvements .
 
Amortization of intangible assets  are computed us ing the straight-l ine method based on the fol lowing estimated useful  l ives:

 
  Years  
Customer relationships     10 

Acquired developed software     5 

Developed software     3 
Goodwi l l See below
  

Goodwi l l  and intangible assets  deemed to have indefini te l ives  are subject to annual  impairment tests . Other intangible assets  are amortized over their useful  l ives .  
 
Warranties
 

The Company offers  a  l imited warranty against so ware defects . Customers  who are not completely sa sfied with their so ware purchase may a empt to be
reimbursed for their purchases  outs ide the warranty period. For the years  ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not incur any expense associated with warranty
cla ims.

 
Adoption of ASC 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation
 

From me to me, the Company issues  shares  of common stock as  share-based compensa on to employees  and non-employees. The Company accounts  for i ts
share-based compensa on to employees  in accordance with FAS B AS C 718, Compensa on – Stock Compensa on. Stock-based compensa on cost i s  measured at the grant
date, based on the estimated fa ir value of the award, and is  recognized as  expense over the requis i te service or vesting period.

 
I n prior periods  through September 30, 2019, the Company accounted for share-based compensa on issued to non-employees  and consultants  in accordance with

the provis ions  of FAS B AS C 505-50, Equity - Based Payments to Non-Employees. Measurement of share-based payment transac ons with non-employees  is  based on the fa ir
value of whichever is  more rel iably measurable: (a) the goods or services  received; or (b) the equity instruments  issued. The final  fa i r value of the share-based payment
transac on is  determined at the performance comple on date. For interim periods, the fa ir value is  es mated, and the percentage of comple on is  appl ied to that es mate to
determine the cumulative expense recorded.

 
The Company adopted the standard during the second quarter of fiscal  year 2020. This  standard did not have a materia l  impact on the Company’s  consol idated

financial  s tatements .
 
Adoption of ASU 2016-02 “Leases (Topic 842)”
 

I n February 2016, the FAS B issued AS U 2016-02 “Leases (Topic 842)”.  Under the new guidance, lessees  wi l l  be required to recognize for a l l  leases  (with the excep on
of short-term leases) a  lease l iabi l i ty, which is  a  lessee’s  obl iga on to make lease payments  aris ing from a lease, measured on a discounted bas is  and a right-of-use asset,
which is  an asset that represents  the lessee’s  right to use, or control  the use of, a  speci fied asset for the lease term.
 

Effec ve July 1, 2019, the Company adopted the requirements  of Accoun ng Standards  Update No. 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)" ("A S U 2016-02"). Al l  amounts  and
disclosures  set forth in this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K  have been updated to comply with this  new standard with results  for repor ng periods  beginning a er July 1, 2019
presented under ASU 2016-02, whi le prior period amounts  and disclosures  are not adjusted and continue to be reported under the accounting standards  in effect for the prior
period.
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The Company adopted the requirements  of AS U 2016-02 u l izing the modified retrospec ve method of trans i on to iden fied leases  as  of July 1, 2019 (the “effective
date”). The recogni on of addi onal  opera ng lease l iabi l i es  was  $82,517 for the current por on and $760,172 for the long-term por on and corresponding opera ng
right-of-use assets  were recorded in the amount of $842,689. This  represents  the opera ng lease exis ng as  of the effec ve date which has  a  lease term of three years  with
the option for two additional  three-year terms.
 

O n June 21, 2018, the Company entered into an office lease at 5258 South Commerce Drive Suite D292, Murray, Utah 84107, providing for the lease of approximately
9,800 square feet, commencing on March 1, 2019. The monthly rent is  $10,200. The ini a l  term of the lease is  three years . The Company has  the op on of renewing for an
additional  two three-year terms.
   
Revenue Recognition
 

 The Company recognizes  revenue as  i t transfers  control  of del iverables  (products , solu ons and services) to i ts  customers  in an amount reflec ng the cons idera on
to which i t expects  to be en tled. To recognize revenue, the Company appl ies  the fol lowing five step approach: (1) iden fy the contract with a  customer, (2) iden fy the
performance obl iga ons in the contract, (3) determine the transac on price, (4) a l locate the transac on price to the performance obl iga ons in the contract, and (5)
recognize revenue when a performance obl iga on is  sa sfied.  The Company accounts  for a  contract based on the terms and condi ons  the par es  agree to, the contract has
commercial  substance and col lectabi l i ty of cons idera on is  probable. The Company appl ies  judgment in determining the customer ’s  abi l i ty and inten on to pay, which is
based on a variety of factors  including the customer’s  historical  payment experience.
 

The Company may enter into arrangements  that cons ist of mul ple performance obl iga ons. Such arrangements  may include any combina on of i ts  del iverables . To
the extent a  contract includes  mul ple promised del iverables , the Company appl ies  judgment to determine whether promised del iverables  are capable of being dis nct and
are dis nct in the context of the contract. I f these cri teria  are not met, the promised del iverables  are accounted for as  a  combined performance obl iga on. For arrangements
with mul ple dis nct performance obl iga ons, the Company al locates  cons idera on among the performance obl iga ons based on their rela ve standalone sel l ing price.
Standalone sel l ing price is  the price at which the Company would sel l  a  promised good or service separately to the customer. W hen not directly observable, the Company
typical ly es mates  standalone sel l ing price by us ing the expected cost plus  a  margin approach. The Company typical ly establ ishes  a  standalone sel l ing price range for i ts
del iverables , which is  reassessed on a periodic bas is  or when facts  and ci rcumstances  change.
 

For performance obl iga ons where control  i s  transferred over me, revenue is  recognized based on the extent of progress  towards  comple on of the performance
obl iga on. The selec on of the method to measure progress  towards  comple on requires  judgment and is  based on the nature of the del iverables  to be provided. Revenue
related to fixed-price contracts  for appl ica on development and systems integra on services , consul ng or other technology services  is  recognized as  the service is
performed us ing the output method, under which the total  value of revenue is  recognized based on each contract’s  del iverable(s) as  they are completed and when value is
transferred to a  customer. Revenue related to fixed-price appl ica on maintenance, tes ng and bus iness  process  services  is  recognized based on our right to invoice for
services  performed for contracts  in which the invoicing is  representative of the value being del ivered, in accordance with the practical  expedient in ASC 606-10-55-18.

 
I f the Company’s  invoicing is  not cons istent with the value del ivered, revenue is  recognized as  the service is  performed based on the method described above. The

output method measures  the results  achieved and value transferred to a  customer, which is  updated as  the project progresses  to reflect the latest avai lable informa on; such
es mates  and changes  in es mates  involve the use of judgment. The cumula ve impact of any revis ion in es mates  is  reflected in the financial  repor ng period in which the
change in es mate becomes known and any an cipated losses  on contracts  are recognized immediately. Revenue related to fixed-price hos ng and infrastructure services  is
recognized based on the Company’s  right to invoice for services  performed for contracts  in which the invoicing is  representa ve of the value being del ivered, in accordance
with the prac cal  expedient in AS C 606-10-55-18. I f the Company’s  invoicing is  not cons istent with value del ivered, revenue is  recognized on a straight-l ine bas is  unless
revenue is  earned and obl iga ons are fulfil led in a  different pa ern. The revenue recogni on method appl ied to the types  of contracts  described above provides  the most
fai thful  depiction of performance towards  satis faction of the Company’s  performance obl igations.
 

Revenue related to the Company’s  so ware l icense arrangements  that do not require s ignificant modifica on or customiza on of the underlying so ware is
recognized when the so ware is  del ivered as  control  i s  transferred at a  point in me. For so ware l icense arrangements  that require s ignificant func onal i ty enhancements
or modifica on of the so ware, revenue for the so ware l icense and related services  is  recognized as  the services  are performed in accordance with the methods described
above. I n so ware hos ng arrangements , the rights  provided to the customer, such as  ownership of a  l icense, contract termina on provis ions  and the feas ibi l i ty of the cl ient
to operate the so ware, are cons idered in determining whether the arrangement includes  a  l icense or a  service. Revenue related to so ware maintenance and support i s
general ly recognized on a straight-l ine bas is  over the contract period.

 
 
 

F-9



Table of Contents
 
 

Management expects  that incremental  commiss ion fees  paid as  a  result of obtaining a  contract are recoverable and therefore the Company capital ized them as
contract costs . The Company recognizes  the incremental  costs  of obtaining contracts  as  an expense when incurred i f the amor za on period of the asset that the Company
otherwise would have recognized is  one year or less .
 

Revenue related to transac on-based or volume-based contracts  i s  recognized over the period the services  are provided in a  manner that corresponds with the value
transferred to the customer to-date relative to the remaining services  to be provided.
 

From me to me, the Company may enter into arrangements  with third party suppl iers  to resel l  products  or services . I n such cases, the Company evaluates  whether
the Company is  the principal  (i .e. report revenue on a gross  bas is ) or agent (i .e. report revenue on a net bas is ). I n doing so, the Company first evaluates  whether i t controls  the
good or service before i t i s  transferred to the customer. I f the Company controls  the good or service before i t i s  transferred to the customer, the Company is  the principal ; i f
not, the Company is  the agent. Determining whether the Company controls  the good or service before i t i s  transferred to the customer may require judgment.
 

The Company provides  customers  with assurance that the related del iverable wi l l  func on as  the par es  intended because i t compl ies  with agreed-upon
speci fications. General  updates  or patch fixes  are not cons idered an additional  performance obl igation in the contract.
 

Variable cons idera on is  es mated us ing ei ther the sum of probabi l i ty weighted amounts  in a  range of poss ible cons idera on amounts  (expected value), or the
s ingle most l ikely amount in a  range of poss ible cons idera on amounts  (most l ikely amount), depending on which method be er predicts  the amount of cons idera on to
which we may be en tled. The Company includes  in the transac on price variable cons idera on only to the extent i t i s  probable that a  s ignificant reversal  of revenue
recognized wi l l  not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable cons idera on is  resolved. The Company’s  es mates  of variable cons idera on and determina on
of whether to include es mated amounts  in the transac on price may involve judgment and is  based largely on an assessment of i ts  an cipated performance and al l
information that i s  reasonably avai lable to the Company.
 

The Company assesses  the ming of the transfer of goods or services  to the customer as  compared to the ming of payments  to determine whether a  s ignificant
financing component exists . As  a  prac cal  expedient, the Company does  not assess  the existence of a  s ignificant financing component when the difference between payment
and transfer of del iverables  is  a  year or less . I f the difference in ming arises  for reasons  other than the provis ion of finance to ei ther the customer or us , no financing
component is  deemed to exist. The primary purpose of the Company’s  invoicing terms is  to provide customers  with s impl i fied and predictable ways  of purchas ing i ts  services ,
not to receive or provide financing from or to customers. The Company does  not cons ider set up or trans i on fees  paid upfront by i ts  customers  to represent a  financing
component, as  such fees  are required to encourage customer commitment to the project and protect us  from early termination of the contract.
 
Trade Accounts Receivable and Contract Balances
 

We class i fy our right to cons idera on in exchange for del iverables  as  ei ther a  receivable or a  contract asset (unbi l led receivable). A receivable is  a  right to
considera on that i s  uncondi onal  (i .e. only the passage of me is  required before payment is  due). For example, we recognize a  receivable for revenue related to our
transac on or volume-based contracts  when earned regardless  of whether amounts  have been bi l led. We present such receivables  in trade accounts  receivable, net in our
consol idated statements  of financial  pos i on at their net es mated real izable value. We maintain an al lowance for doub ul  accounts  to provide for the es mated amount of
receivables  that may not be col lected. The al lowance is  based upon an assessment of customer creditworthiness , historical  payment experience, the age of outstanding
receivables , judgment, and other appl icable factors .
 

A contract asset i s  a  right to cons idera on that i s  condi onal  upon factors  other than the passage of me. Contract assets  are presented in current and other assets
in our consol idated balance sheets  and primari ly relate to unbi l led amounts  on fixed-price contracts  u l izing the output method of revenue recogni on. The table below
shows movements  in contract assets :
 

  
Contract

assets   
Balance – June 30, 2020  $ 3,139,480  
   Revenue recognized during the period but not bi l led   -  
   Amounts  reclass i fied to accounts  receivable   (1,391,313)  
   Other   (90,306)  
Balance – June 30, 2021  $ 1,657,861 (1)

  
(1)   Contract asset balances  for June 30, 2021 include a current and a long-term contract asset, $1,248,936 and $408,925, respectively.
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O ur contract assets  and l iabi l i es  are reported at the end of each repor ng period. The difference between the opening and clos ing balances  of our contract assets
and deferred revenue primari ly results  from the ming difference between our performance obl iga ons and the customer ’s  payment. We receive payments  from customers
based on the terms establ ished in our contracts , which may vary general ly by contract type.
 

The table below shows movements  in the deferred revenue balances  (current and noncurrent) for the period:
 
  Contract liability 
Balance – June 30, 2020  $ 1,845,347 
  Amounts  bi l led but not recognized as  revenue   1,665,648 
  Revenue recognized related to the opening balance of deferred revenue   (1,755,654)
  Other   - 
Balance – June 30, 2021  $ 1,755,341 
 

O ur contract assets  and l iabi l i es  are reported in a  net pos i on on a contract by contract bas is  at the end of each repor ng period. The difference between the
opening and clos ing balances  of our contract assets  and deferred revenue primari ly results  from the ming difference between our performance obl iga ons and the
customer’s  payment. We receive payments  from customers  based on the terms establ ished in our contracts , which may vary general ly by contract type.
 
Disaggregation of Revenue
 

The table below presents  disaggregated revenue from contracts  with customers  by contract-type. Al l  revenues for the years  ending June 30, 2020 and 2021 were
generated from sales  in North America. We bel ieve this  disaggrega on best depicts  the nature, amount, ming and uncertainty of our revenue and cash flows that may be
affected by industry, market and other economic factors :

 
 

   Year Ended, June 30        
  2021   2020   Chg $   Chg %  
Recurring - Subscription, Support and Services  $ 17,733,134  $ 16,043,245  $ 1,689,889   11%
Non - Recurring - Services   37,121   849,288   (812,167)   -96%
Non - Recurring - License   -   218,250   (218,250)   -100%
Transaction Based - Marketplace   3,236,821   2,927,271   309,550   11%
Total  $ 21,007,076  $ 20,038,054  $ 969,022   5%
 
 
Software Development Costs
 

The Company accounts  for research costs  of computer so ware to be sold, leased or otherwise marketed as  expense un l  technological  feas ibi l i ty has  been
establ ished for the product. O nce technological  feas ibi l i ty i s  establ ished, the company wi l l  occas ional ly capital ize so ware costs  un l  the product is  avai lable for general
release to customers. I n these instances, the Company determines  technological  feas ibi l i ty for i ts  so ware products  to have been reached when a working prototype is
complete and meets  or exceeds des ign specifica ons including func ons, features , and technical  performance requirements . The Company capital ized so ware development
costs  of $171,733 in the fiscal  year ended June 30, 2021.
 
Research and Development Costs
 

Research and development costs  include personnel  costs , engineering, consul ng, and contract labor and are expensed as  incurred for so ware that has  not
achieved technological  feas ibi l i ty.

 
Advertising Costs
 

Advertis ing is  expensed as  incurred. Advertis ing costs  were approximately $5,000 and $54,048 for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
 
Income Taxes
 

The Company recognizes  deferred tax l iabi l i es  and assets  for the expected future tax consequences  of temporary differences  between tax bases  and financial
reporting bases  of other assets  and l iabi l i ties .
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Earnings Per Share
 

Bas ic net income per common share (“Basic EP S”) excludes  di lu on and is  computed by dividing net income appl icable to common shareholders  by the weighted
average number of shares  of the Company’s  common stock, par value $0.01 (“Common Stock”) outstanding during the period. Di luted net income per common share (“Diluted
EPS”) reflects  the poten al  di lu on that could occur i f s tock op ons or other contracts  to issue shares  of Common Stock were exercised or converted into Common Stock. The
computation of Di luted EPS does  not assume exercise or convers ion of securi ties  that would have an antidi lutive effect on net income per share of Common Stock.

 
For the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 warrants  to purchase 1,085,068 shares  of Common Stock were included in the computa on of di luted EP S and warrants

to purchase 23,737 shares  were excluded due to the an -di lu ve effect. Warrants  to purchase shares  of Common Stock were outstanding at prices  ranging $4.00 from to
$10.00 per share at June 30, 2021.

  
The fol lowing table presents  the components  of the computation of bas ic and di luted earnings  per share for the periods  indicated:

 
  Year ended June 30,  
  2021   2020  
Numerator       
Net income appl icable to common shareholders  $ 3,530,951  $ 1,006,825 
         
Denominator         
Weighted average common shares  outstanding, bas ic   19,502,000   19,651,000 
Warrants  to purchase Common Stock   252,000   212,000 
         
Weighted average common shares  outstanding, di luted   19,754,000   19,863,000 
         
Net income per share         
Bas ic  $ 0.18  $ 0.05 
Di luted  $ 0.18  $ 0.05 
 
Stock-Based Compensation
 

The Company recognizes  the cost of employee services  received in exchange for awards  of equity instruments  based on the grant-date fa ir value of those awards. The
Company records  compensa on expense on a straight-l ine bas is . The fa ir value of op ons granted are es mated at the date of grant us ing a  Black-Scholes  op on pricing
model  with assumptions  for the risk-free interest rate, expected l i fe, volati l i ty, dividend yield and forfei ture rate.
  
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 

The Company cons iders  a l l  highly l iquid investments  purchased with an original  maturi ty of twelve months  or less  to be cash equivalents . Cash and cash
equivalents  are stated at fa i r value.
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 

The Company’s  financial  instruments  cons ist of cash, cash equivalents , receivables , payables , accruals  and notes  payable. The carrying amount of cash, cash
equivalents , receivables , payables  and accruals  approximates  fa i r value due to the short-term nature of these i tems. The notes  payable a lso approximate fa ir value based on
evaluations  of market interest rates .
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NOTE 3. RECEIVABLES
 

Accounts  receivable cons ist of the fol lowing at June 30:
 

  2021   2020  
Accounts  receivable  $ 5,375,598  $ 6,560,024 
Al lowance for doubtful  accounts   (234,963)   (251,954)
  $ 5,140,635  $ 6,308,070 
 

Accounts  receivable cons ist of trade accounts  receivable and unbi l led amounts  recognized as  revenue during the year for which invoicing occurs  subsequent to
year-end. Amounts  that have been invoiced are recorded in accounts  receivable and in deferred revenue or revenue, depending on whether the revenue recogni on cri teria
have been met.  

  
NOTE 4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
 

Property and equipment are stated at cost and cons ist of the fol lowing at June 30:
 
  2021   2020  
Computer equipment  $ 4,069,543  $ 3,974,792 
Furniture and equipment   2,237,684   2,185,295 
Leasehold improvements   807,816   807,816 
   7,115,043   6,697,903 
Less  accumulated depreciation and amortization   (4,525,849)   (3,964,501)
  $ 2,589,194  $ 3,003,402 
 

Depreciation expense for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $561,348 and $619,277, respectively.
  
NOTE 5. CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE COSTS
 

Capital ized software costs  cons ist of the fol lowing at June 30:
  2021   2020  
Capital ized software costs  $ 2,909,044  $ 2,737,312 
Less  accumulated amortization   (2,737,312)   (2,718,773)
  $ 171,732  $ 18,539 
 

Amortization expense for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $18,539 and $52,326, respectively.
 
NOTE 6. ACQUISITION RELATED INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
 

Customer relationships  cons ist of the fol lowing at June 30:
  2021   2020  
Customer relationships  $ 5,537,161  $ 5,537,161 
Less  accumulated amortization   (5,011,561)   (4,880,161)
  $ 525,600  $ 657,000 
 

Amortization expense for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $131,400 and $131,400, respectively.
 

Estimated aggregate amortization expense per year are as  fol lows:
 
Years  ending June 30:    
2022  $ 131,400 
2023  $ 131,400 
2024  $ 131,400 
2025  $ 131,400 
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NOTE 7. ACCRUED LIABILITIES
 

 Accrued l iabi l i ties  cons ist of the fol lowing at June 30:
 
  2021   2020  
Accrued stock-based compensation  $ 348,265  $ 252,959 
Accrued compensation   293,130   383,088 
Accrued other l iabi l i ties   56,333   207,003 
Accrued taxes    146,004   136,117 
Accrued dividends   144,360   144,361 
  $ 988,092  $ 1,123,528 
  
NOTE 8. NOTES PAYABLE 
 

The Company had the fol lowing notes  payable obl igations  at June 30:
 
Notes Payable:  2021   2020  
       
Note payable to a  bank, due in monthly instal lments  of $29,097 bearing interest at 4.99% due Apri l  1, 2023 secured by related
capital  equipment  $ -  $ 920,754 
Unsecured Paycheck Protection Program loans  which carries  an interest rate of 1%. Principle payments  begin on November 23, 2020
in the amount of $61,429.   -   1,109,350 
  $ -  $ 2,030,104 
Less  current portion notes  payable   -   (790,108)
  $ -  $ 1,239,996 
 
Paycheck Protection Loan. O n December 19, 2020, the S BA authorized ful l  forgiveness  in the amount of approximately $1.1 mi l l ion under the P P P  Loan, whereby the Company
wi l l  not need to make any payments  on the P P P  Loan that U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on faci l i tates  as  an S BA lender. U.S. Bank Na onal  Associa on has  appl ied the
forgiveness  amount the SBA authorized, plus  a l l  accrued interest, to the Company’s  PPP Loan. The requirements  under this  program are establ ished by the SBA. Al l  requests  for
PPP Loan forgiveness  are subject to SBA el igibi l i ty.
 
 
NOTE 9. LINES OF CREDIT
 

O n January 10, 2021, the Company and U.S. Bank entered into an amendment (the “Amendment”) to the outstanding Stand-Alone Revolving Note (the “Revolving
Note”), preferred accompanying addendum. P ursuant to the Amendment, the par es  agreed to (i ) extend the maturi ty date to December 31, 2021 and (i i ) increase the interest
rate in the event of a  default to 5% per annum.
 

The l ine of credit, as  amended, i s  scheduled to mature on December 31, 2021. The balance on the l ine of credit at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 was $6,000,000
and $4,660,000, respectively.  
 
NOTE 10. DEFERRED REVENUE
 

Deferred revenue cons isted of the fol lowing at June 30:
 

  2021   2020  
Subscription  $ 1,513,729  $ 1,596,228 
Other   241,612   249,119 
  $ 1,755,341  $ 1,845,347 
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NOTE 11. INCOME TAXES

 
Deferred taxes  are provided on a l iabi l i ty method whereby deferred tax assets  are recognized for deduc ble temporary differences  and opera ng loss  and tax credit

carry forwards  and deferred tax l iabi l i es  are recognized for taxable differences. Temporary differences  are the differences  between the reported amounts  of assets  and
l iabi l i es  and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets  are reduced by a  valua on al lowance when, in the opinion of management, i t i s  more l ikely than not that some por on or
al l  of the deferred tax assets  wi l l  not be real ized. Deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i es  are adjusted for the effects  of changes  in tax laws and rates  on the date of enactment. Due
to the tax rates  being changed in 2018 we have used a federal  and state blended rate of 26%.
 

Net deferred tax l iabi l i ties  cons ist of the fol lowing components  at June 30:
 
  2021   2020  
Deferred tax assets :       
   NOL carryover  $ 17,044,800  $ 27,788,000 
   Al lowance for bad debts   61,000   65,500 
   Accrued expenses   77,200   52,000 
   Depreciation   (630,200)   (700,400)
   Amortization   (687,500)   (565,100)
         
Valuation al lowance   (15,865,300)   (26,640,000)
Net deferred tax asset  $ -  $ - 

 
The income tax provis ion differs  from the amounts  of income tax determined by applying the US federal  income tax rate to pretax income from con nuing opera ons

for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 due to the fol lowing:
 
  2021   2020  
       
   Book income  $ 1,062,891  $ 414,250 
   Stock for services   (25,679)   4.625 
   Change in accrual   25,286   (3,726)
   Li fe insurance   17,626   17,626 
   Meals  and entertainment   3,505   8,874 
   Change in a l lowance   (4,488)   27,594 
   Change in depreciation   (52,113)   (168,095)
   PPP & EIDL loan forgiveness   (288,431)   -  
   NOL uti l i zation   (738,597)   (301,148)
   Valuation al lowance   -   - 
  $ -  $ - 

 
At June 30, 2021, the Company had net opera ng loss  carry-forwards  of approximately $65,557,000 that may be offset against past and future taxable income from

the year 2020 through 2037. A s ignificant por on of the net opera ng loss  carryforwards  began to expire in 2019. No tax benefit has  been reported in the June 30, 2021
consol idated financial  s tatements  s ince the potentia l  tax benefi t i s  offset by a  valuation al lowance of the same amount.
 

Due to the change in ownership provis ions  of the Tax Reform Act of 1986, net opera ng loss  carryforwards  for Federal  income tax repor ng purposes  are subject to
annual  l imita ons. I n January of 2009 the Company acquired P rescient Appl ied I ntel l igence, I nc. which had s ignificant net opera ng loss  carry-forwards. Due to the change
in ownership, P rescient's  net opera ng loss  carryforwards  may be l imited as  to use in future years . The l imita on wi l l  be determined on a year-to-year bas is . I n June of 2015
the Company acquired Repositrak, Inc. which had s igni ficant net operating loss  carryforwards. Due to the change in ownership, Repositrak's  net operating loss  carryforwards
may be l imited as  to use in future years . The l imitation wi l l  be determined on a year-to-year bas is .
 

The Company determines  whether i t i s  more l ikely than not that a  tax pos i on wi l l  be sustained upon examina on based upon the technical  merits  of the pos i on. I f
the more-l ikely-than-not threshold is  met, the Company measures  the tax pos i on to determine the amount to recognize in the financial  s tatements . The Company performed a
review of i ts  materia l  tax pos itions  in accordance with these recognition and measurement standards.
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The Company has  concluded that there are no s ignificant uncertain tax pos i ons  requiring disclosure, and there are not materia l  amounts  of unrecognized tax
benefi ts .
 

The Company includes  interest and penal es  aris ing from the underpayment of income taxes  in the consol idated statements  of opera ons in the provis ion for
income taxes. As  of June 30, 2021, the Company had no accrued interest or penalties  related to uncertain tax pos itions.
 

The Company files  income tax returns  in the U.S. federal  jurisdic on and various  state jurisdic ons. W ith few excep ons, the Company is  no longer subject to U.S.
federal , s tate and local  income tax examinations  by tax authori ties  for years  before June 30, 2018.
 
NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 
Leases
 

O n May 1, 2019, the Company completed the expansion of new equipment for the Company’s  informa on technology infrastructure, bui ldout of i ts  corporate
headquarters , and expansion of i ts  col loca on data center, which i t completed us ing approximately $1,269,000 (the “ Lease A mount”) of funds  provided by U.S. Bank to
finance equipment and services  related to the Company’s  expansion and reloca on pursuant to that certain lease agreement, original ly entered into by and between the
Company and U.S. Bank on January 9, 2019 (the “Lease A greement”). P ursuant to the Lease Agreement, as  of May 1, 2019, U.S. Bank is  now leas ing back the property and
equipment purchased by the Company. P ursuant to the Lease Agreement, commencing May 1, 2019, the ini a l  term of the lease shal l  be 48 months, the Lease Amount shal l
accrue interest at a  rate of 5.0% per annum, and the Company shal l  be required to make monthly rental  payments  in the amount of approximately $29,097 per month. O n July
30, 2020 the Company made an early repayment of the en re outstanding balance on the note payable due to U.S. Bank in the amount of $960,208. The repayment amount
included $64,721 of accrued interest. No repayment penalties  were incurred as  a  result of the transaction.
 

O n June 21, 2018 the Company entered into an office lease at 5252 South Commerce Drive Suite D292, Murray, Utah 84107, providing for the lease of approximately
9,800 square feet for a  period of three years , commencing on March 1, 2019. The monthly rent is  $10,200.
 

Minimum future payments , including principal  and interest, under the non-cancelable capital  leases  are as  fol lows:
 
Year ending June 30:    
2022  $ 81,600 
 

From me to me the Company may enter into or exi t from diminu ve opera ng lease agreements  for equipment such as  copiers , temporary back up servers , etc.
These leases  are not of a  materia l  amount and thus  wi l l  not in the aggregate have a materia l  adverse effect on our bus iness , financial  condi on, results  of opera on or
l iquidity.
 
NOTE 13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
 

The Company offers  an employee benefit plan under Benefit P lan Sec on 401(k) of the I nternal  Revenue Code. Employees  who have a ained the age of 18 are el igible
to par cipate. The Company, at i ts  discre on, may match employee’s  contribu ons at a  percentage determined annual ly by the Board of Directors . The Company does  not
currently match contributions. There were no expenses  for the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.
 
NOTE 14. STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
 
Officers and Directors Stock Compensation

 
Effective October 2018, the Board of Directors  approved the fol lowing compensation for directors  who are not employed by the Company:

 
● Annual  cash compensa on of $75,000 payable at the rate of $18,750 per quarter. The Company has  the right to pay this  amount in the form of shares  of the Company’s

Common Stock.
 

● Upon appointment, outs ide independent directors  receive a  grant of $150,000 payable in shares  of the Company’s  restricted Common Stock calculated based on the
market value of the shares  of Common Stock on the date of grant. The shares  vest ratably over a  five-year period.

 
● Reimbursement of a l l  travel  expense related to performance of Directors ’ duties  on behalf of the Company.
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Officers, Key Employees, Consultants and Directors Stock Compensation. 
 

I n January 2013, the Board of Directors  approved the Second Amended and Restated 2011 Stock P lan (the “A mended 2011 P lan”), which Amended 2011 P lan was
approved by shareholders  on March 29, 2013. Under the terms of the Amended 2011 P lan, a l l  employees, consultants  and directors  of the Company are el igible to
participate. The maximum aggregate number of shares  of Common Stock that may be granted under the Amended 2011 Plan is  675,000 shares.
 

A Commi ee of independent members  of the Company’s  Board of Directors  administers  the Amended 2011 P lan. The exercise price for each share of Common Stock
purchasable under any incen ve stock op on granted under the Amended 2011 P lan shal l  be not less  than 100% of the fa ir market value of the Common Stock, as  determined
by the stock exchange on which the Common Stock trades  on the date of grant. I f the incen ve stock op on is  granted to a  shareholder who possesses  more than 10% of the
Company’s  vo ng power, then the exercise price shal l  be not less  than 110% of the fa ir market value on the date of grant. Each op on shal l  be exercisable in whole or in
instal lments  as  determined by the Committee at the time of the grant of such options. Al l  incentive stock options  expire after 10 years . If the incentive stock option is  held by a
shareholder who possesses  more than 10% of the Company's  vo ng power, then the incen ve stock op on expires  a er five years . I f the op on holder is  terminated, then the
incen ve stock op ons granted to such holder expire no later than three months  a er the date of termina on. For op on holders  granted incen ve stock op ons exercisable
for the first me during any fiscal  year and in excess  of $100,000 (determined by the fa ir market value of the shares  of Common Stock as  of the grant date), the excess  shares
of Common Stock shal l  not be deemed to be purchased pursuant to incentive stock options.

  
During the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 the Company issued 40,883 and 61,551 shares  to i ts  directors  and 37,575 and 41,747 shares  to employees  and

consultants , respec vely, under the Amended 2011 P lan. The Company, under i ts  Share Repurchase P rogram, repurchased 211,008 and 412,185 shares  of i ts  Common Stock
during the years  ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respec vely. Those shares  were cancel led and returned to authorized but unissued shares. The Company holds  no Treasury
Stock. Vested and issued shares  under the Amended 2011 plan for the fiscal  year ending June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, total ing 9,357 and 16,059, respectively are included
in the rol l forward of Restricted Stock units  below.
 
Restricted Stock Units
 

  
Restricted Stock

Units   

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

($/share)  
       
Outstanding at July 1, 2019   866,274  $ 5.47 
Granted   1,008   4.96 
Vested and issued   (16,059)   9.33 
Forfeited   (13,799)   7.74 
Outstanding at June 30, 2020   837,424   5.36 
Granted   13,249   6.35 
Vested and issued   (9,357)   8.74 
Forfeited   -   - 
Outstanding at June 30, 2021   841,316   5.34 
 

The number of restricted stock units  outstanding at June 30, 2021 included 9,288 units  that have vested but for which shares  of Common Stock had not yet been
issued pursuant to the terms of the agreement.

 
As  of June 30, 2021, there was approximately $4.5 mi l l ion of unrecognized stock-based compensa on expense under our equity compensa on plans, which is

expected to be recognized on a straight-l ine bas is  over a  weighted average period of 2.51 years .
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Warrants
 

O utstanding warrants  were issued in connec on with private placements  of the Company’s  Common Stock and with the restructuring of the Series  B P referred that
occurred in March of 2018. The fol lowing table summarizes  information about fixed stock warrants  outstanding at June 30, 2021:
 

 
Warrants Outstanding

at June 30, 2021   
Warrants Exercisable

at June 30, 2021  

 
 

Range of
exercise prices   

Number
Outstanding   

Weighted average
remaining contractual

life (years)   
Weighted average

exercise price   
Number

exercisable   
Weighted average

exercise price  
 $ 4.00   1,085,068   1.60  $ 4.00   1,085,068  $ 4.00 
 $ 10.00   23,737   1.57  $ 10.00   23,737  $ 10.00 
      1,108,805   1.60  $ 4.13   1,108,805  $ 4.13 
 
Preferred Stock
 

The Company’s  ar cles  of incorpora on currently authorizes  the issuance of up to 30,000,000 shares  of ‘blank check’ preferred stock, par value $0.01 (“Preferred
Stock”) with des igna ons, rights , and preferences  as  may be determined from me to me by the Company’s  Board of Directors , of which 700,000 shares  are currently
des ignated as  Series  B P referred Stock (“Series B P referred”) and 550,000 shares  are des ignated as  Series  B-1 P referred Stock (“Series B-1 P referred”).  Both classes  of Series  B
P referred Stock pay dividends at a  rate of 7% per annum i f paid by the Company in cash, or 9% i f paid by the Company by the issuance of addi onal  shares  of Series  B
Preferred, or Series  B-1 Preferred, as  appl icable.
 

The Company does  bus iness  with some of the largest retai lers  and wholesalers  in the World. Management bel ieves  the Series  B-1 P referred favorably impacts  the
Company’s  overal l  cost of capital  in that i t i s : (i ) perpetual  and, therefore, an equity instrument that pos i vely impacts  the Company’s  coverage ra os, (i i ) possesses  a  below
market dividend rate rela ve to s imi lar instruments , (i i i ) offers  the flexibi l i ty of a  paid-in-kind (P I K ) payment op on, and (iv) i s  without covenants . A er exploring a l terna ve
op ons for redeeming the Series  B-1 P referred, management determined that a l terna ve financing op ons were materia l ly more expensive, or would impair the Company’s
net cash pos ition, which management bel ieves  could cause customer concerns  and negatively impact the Company’s  abi l i ty to attract new bus iness .
 

Sec on 4 of the Company’s  F i rst Amended and Restated Cer ficate of Des igna on of the Rela ve Rights , Powers  and P references  of the Series  B-1 P referred Stock, as
amended (the “Series B-1 COD”) provides  the Company’s  Board of Directors  with the right to redeem any or a l l  of the outstanding shares  of the Company’s  Series  B-1 P referred
for a  cash payment of $10.70 per share at any me upon providing the holders  of Series  B-1 P referred at least ten days  wri en no ce that sets  forth the date on which the
redemption wi l l  occur (the “Redemption Notice”).
  

As  of June 30, 2021, a  total  of 625,375 shares  of Series  B Preferred and 212,402 shares  of Series  B-1 Preferred were issued and outstanding. 
 
Share Repurchase Program
 

On May 9, 2019, our Board of Directors  approved of the repurchase of up to $4.0 mi l l ion shares  of our Common Stock, which repurchases  may be made in privately
nego ated transac ons or in the open market at prices  per share not exceeding the then-current market prices  (the “ Share Repurchase Program”). Under the Share Repurchase
P rogram, management has  discre on to determine the dol lar amount of shares  to be repurchased and the ming of any repurchases  in compl iance with appl icable laws and
regula ons, including Rule 12b-18 of the Exchange Act. O n March 17, 2020, given the extreme uncertainty due to COVI D-19 at the me, the Board suspended the Share
Repurchase Program.
 

O n May 18, 2021, our Board of Directors  resumed i ts  Share Repurchase P rogram, and increased the buyback from $4 mi l l ion to $6 mi l l ion. The Share Repurchase
P rogram expires  24 months  fol lowing May 18, 2021, and i t may be suspended for periods  of me or discon nued at any me, at the Board’s  discre on. The total  remaining
authoriza on for future shares  of Common Stock repurchases  under our Share Repurchase P rogram was $2,050,885 as  of June 30, 2021. From me-to- me, our Board may
authorize further increases  to our Share Repurchase Program.
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The fol lowing table provides  informa on about repurchases  of our Common Stock registered pursuant to Sec on 12 of the  Exchange Act, during the years  ended June
30, 2021 and 2020:
 

Period (1)  

 
 

Total Number of
Shares

Purchased   
 

Average Price
Paid Per Share   

 
Total Number of

Shares
Purchased as

Part of Publicly
Announced

Plans or
Programs   

 
 

Remaining
Amount

Available for
Future Share
Repurchases

Under the Plans
or Programs  

             
Year Ended June 30, 2020             
July 1, 2019 – September 30, 2019:   79,954  $ 6.43   167,554  $ 3,000,235 
October 1, 2019 – December 31, 2019:   174,615  $ 4.80   342,169  $ 2,162,557 
January 1, 2020 – March 31, 2020:   157,616  $ 5.11   499,785  $ 1,359,123 
Apri l  1, 2020 – June 30, 2020:   -  $ -   -  $ 1,359,123 
                 
Year Ended June 30, 2021                 
July 1, 2020 – September 30, 2020:   -  $ -   -  $ 1,359,123 
October 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020:   -  $ -   -  $ 1,359,123 
January 1, 2021 – March 31, 2021:   84,081  $ 6.04   584,586  $ 2,850,880 
Apri l  1, 2021 – June 30, 2021:   126,927  $ 6.30   457,659  $ 2,050,885 
 
(1) We close our books  and records  on the last calendar day of each month to a l ign our financial  clos ing with our bus iness  processes.
 
 NOTE 15. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

I n August 2018, the FAS B issued AS U 2018-15 Intangibles – Goodwill and O ther Internal-Use So ware (Subtopic 350-40) – Customer’s A ccoun ng for Implementa on
Costs Incurred in a C loud Compu ng A rrangement That is a Service Contract. The amendments  in this  update apply to an en ty who is  a  customer in a  hos ng arrangement
accounted for as  a  service contract. The update requires  a  customer in a  hos ng arrangement to capital ize certain implementa on costs . Costs  associated with the
appl ica on development stage of the implementa on should be capital ized and costs  with the other stages  should be expensed. For instance, costs  for tra ining and data
convers ion should be expensed. The capital ized implementa on costs  should be expensed over the term of the hos ng arrangement, which is  the noncancelable period plus
periods  covered by an op on to extend i f the customer is  reasonably certain to exercise the op on. I mpairment of the capital ized costs  should be cons idered s imi lar to other
intangibles . The effec ve date of this  update is  effec ve for annual  repor ng periods  beginning a er December 15, 2019 for publ ic en es  and a er December 15, 2020 for
al l  other en es  with early adop on permi ed. The Company is  a  customer in a  hos ng arrangement and may enter into new arrangements  in the future. The Company
adopted the standard during the second quarter of fi scal  year 2020. This  standard did not have a materia l  impact on the Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements .

 
I n August 2018, the FAS B issued AS U 2018-13 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value

Measurement. This  AS U el iminates , amends, and adds  disclosure requirements  for fa i r value measurements . The new standard is  effec ve for fiscal  years  beginning a er
December 15, 2019, including interim periods  within those fiscal  years . The Company adopted the standard during the second quarter of fiscal  year 2020. This  standard did
not have a materia l  impact on the Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements .
 

I n June 2018, the FAS B issued AS U 2018-07 Compensa on – Stock Compensa on (Topic 718), Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment A ccoun ng. The
amendments  in this  update expand the scope of Topic 718 to include share-based payment transac ons for acquiring goods and services  from nonemployees. P rior to this
update, equity-based payments  to non-employees  was accounted for under Subtopic 505-50 resul ng in s ignificant differences  between the accoun ng for share-based
payments  to non-employees  as  compared to employees. O ne of the most s ignificant changes  is  that non-employee share-based awards  (class ified as  equity awards) may be
measured at grant-date fa ir value and not have to be con nual ly revalued un l  the service/goods are rendered. The update also indicates  that share-based awards  related to
financing and awards  granted to a  customer in conjunc on with sel l ing goods or services  are not included in Topic 718. This  standard is  effec ve for interim and annual
repor ng periods  beginning a er December 15, 2018 for publ ic en es  and December 15, 2019 for a l l  other en es. Early adop on is  permi ed, but no earl ier than an
en ty’s  adop on date of Topic 606. The Company adopted the standard during the first quarter of fiscal  year 2020. This  standard did not have a materia l  impact on the
Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements .
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  I n January 2017, the FAS B issued AS U 2017-04 Intangibles-Goodwill and O ther (Topic 350): S implifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, which amends and s impl ifies
the accoun ng standard for goodwi l l  impairment. The new standard removes Step 2 of the goodwi l l  impairment test, which requires  a  hypothe cal  purchase price a l loca on.
A goodwi l l  impairment wi l l  now be the amount a  repor ng unit’s  carrying value exceeds i ts  fa i r value, l imited to the total  amount of goodwi l l  a l located to that repor ng unit.
The new standard is  effec ve for annual  and any interim impairment tests  for periods  beginning a er December 15, 2019. The Company adopted the standard during the
fourth quarter of fi scal  year 2020. This  standard did not have a materia l  impact on the Company’s  consol idated financial  s tatements .

 
I n February 2016, the FAS B issued AS U 2016-02 Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, lessees  wi l l  be required to recognize for a l l  leases  (with the excep on of

short-term leases) a  lease l iabi l i ty, which is  a  lessee’s  obl iga on to make lease payments  aris ing from a lease, measured on a discounted bas is  and a right-of-use asset,
which is  an asset that represents  the lessee’s  right to use, or control  the use of, a  speci fied asset for the lease term.
 

Effec ve July 1, 2019, the Company adopted the requirements  of Accoun ng Standards  Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) ("A S U 2016-02"). Al l  amounts  and
disclosures  set forth in this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K  have been updated to comply with this  new standard with results  for repor ng periods  beginning a er July 1, 2019
presented under ASU 2016-02, whi le prior period amounts  and disclosures  are not adjusted and continue to be reported under the accounting standards  in effect for the prior
period.
  
NOTE 16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 

Service Agreement.  During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Company con nued to be a party to a  Service Agreement with F ields  Management, I nc. (“FMI”), pursuant
to which F M I  provided certain execu ve management services  to the Company, including des igna ng Mr. F ields  to perform the func ons of P res ident and Chief Execu ve
O fficer for the Company. Mr. F ields , F M I ’s  des ignated execu ve, who also serves  as  the Company’s  Chair of the Board of Directors , controls  F M I . The Company had no
payables  to FMI at June 30, 2021 and 2020 respectively, under the Service Agreement. 
 
NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

 
I n accordance with the Subsequent Events  Topic of the FAS B AS C 855, we have evaluated subsequent events , through the fil ing date and noted no further subsequent

events  that are reasonably l ikely to impact the Company’s  financial  s tatements .
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Exhibit 23.1

 
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

 
 
We hereby consent to the incorpora on by reference in this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K  of Park C ity Group, I nc. for the year ended June 30, 2021 of our report dated
September 28, 2021 included in i ts  Registra on Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-255189) rela ng to the financial  s tatements  for the year ended June 30, 2021 l i s ted in the
accompanying index.
 
 
/s/ Haynie & Company
Haynie & Company
Salt Lake City, Utah
September 28, 2021
 
 
 



 
 

Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE AND FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(A)

 
I , Randal l  K. Fields , certi fy that:
 
1.  I  have reviewed this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K of Park City Group, Inc.;
 
2.  Based on my knowledge, this  report does  not contain any untrue statement of a  materia l  fact or omit to state a  materia l  fact necessary to make the statements  made, in
l ight of the ci rcumstances  under which such statements  were made, not mis leading with respect to the period covered by this  report;
 
3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial  s tatements , and other financial  informa on included in this  report, fa i rly present in a l l  materia l  respects  the financial  condi on,
results  of operations  and cash flows of the registrant as  of, and for, the periods  presented in this  report;
 
4.  The registrant’s  other cer fying officer(s) and I  are responsible for establ ishing and maintaining disclosure controls  and procedures  (as  defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal  control  over financial  reporting (as  defined in Exchange Act Rules  13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 
    (a)  Des igned such disclosure controls  and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls  and procedures  to be des igned under my supervis ion, to ensure that materia l
informa on rela ng to the registrant, including i ts  consol idated subs idiaries , i s  made known to me by others  within those en es, par cularly during the period in which
this  report i s  being prepared;
 
    (b)  Des igned such internal  control  over financial  repor ng, or caused such internal  control  over financial  repor ng to be des igned under my supervis ion, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rel iabi l i ty of financial  repor ng and the prepara on of financial  s tatements  for external  purposes  in accordance with general ly
accepted accounting principles ;
 
    (c)  Evaluated the effec veness  of the registrant’s  disclosure controls  and procedures  and presented in this  report our conclus ions  about the effec veness  of the disclosure
controls  and procedures, as  of the end of the period covered by this  report based on such evaluation; and
 
    (d)  D isclosed in this  report any change in the registrant’s  internal  control  over financing repor ng that occurred during the registrant’s  most recent fiscal  quarter (the
registrant’s  fourth fiscal  quarter in the case of an annual  report) that has  materia l ly affected, or i s  reasonably l ikely to materia l ly affect, the registrant's  internal  control  over
financial  reporting; and
 
5.  The registrant’s  other cer fying officer(s) and I  have disclosed, based on our most recent evalua on of internal  control  over financial  repor ng, to the registrant’s
auditors  and the audit committee of the registrant’s  board of directors  (or persons  performing the equivalent function):
 
    (a)  Al l  s ignificant deficiencies  and materia l  weaknesses  in the des ign or opera on of internal  control  over financial  repor ng which are reasonably l ikely to adversely
affect the registrant’s  abi l i ty to record, process , summarize and report financial  information; and
 
    (b)  Any fraud, whether or not materia l , that involves  management or other employees  who have a s ignificant role in the registrant’s  internal  control  over financial
reporting.
 
 
Date: September 28, 2021 By:  /s/ Randal l  K. Fields

Randal l  K. Fields
Chief Executive Officer, Chairman and Director
(Principal  Executive Officer)

 
 



 

Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE AND FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(A)

 
I , John Merri l l , certi fy that:
 
1.  I  have reviewed this  Annual  Report on Form 10-K of Park City Group, Inc.;
 
2.  Based on my knowledge, this  report does  not contain any untrue statement of a  materia l  fact or omit to state a  materia l  fact necessary to make the statements  made, in
l ight of the ci rcumstances  under which such statements  were made, not mis leading with respect to the period covered by this  report;
 
3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial  s tatements , and other financial  informa on included in this  report, fa i rly present in a l l  materia l  respects  the financial  condi on,
results  of operations  and cash flows of the registrant as  of, and for, the periods  presented in this  report;
 
4.  The registrant’s  other cer fying officer(s) and I  are responsible for establ ishing and maintaining disclosure controls  and procedures  (as  defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal  control  over financial  reporting (as  defined in Exchange Act Rules  13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 
    (a)  Des igned such disclosure controls  and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls  and procedures  to be des igned under my supervis ion, to ensure that materia l
informa on rela ng to the registrant, including i ts  consol idated subs idiaries , i s  made known to me by others  within those en es, par cularly during the period in which
this  report i s  being prepared;
 
    (b)  Des igned such internal  control  over financial  repor ng, or caused such internal  control  over financial  repor ng to be des igned under my supervis ion, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rel iabi l i ty of financial  repor ng and the prepara on of financial  s tatements  for external  purposes  in accordance with general ly
accepted accounting principles ;
 
    (c)  Evaluated the effec veness  of the registrant’s  disclosure controls  and procedures  and presented in this  report our conclus ions  about the effec veness  of the disclosure
controls  and procedures, as  of the end of the period covered by this  report based on such evaluation; and
 
    (d)  D isclosed in this  report any change in the registrant’s  internal  control  over financing repor ng that occurred during the registrant’s  most recent fiscal  quarter (the
registrant’s  fourth fiscal  quarter in the case of an annual  report) that has  materia l ly affected, or i s  reasonably l ikely to materia l ly affect, the registrant’s  internal  control  over
financial  reporting; and
 
5.  The registrant’s  other cer fying officer(s) and I  have disclosed, based on our most recent evalua on of internal  control  over financial  repor ng, to the registrant’s
auditors  and the audit committee of the registrant’s  board of directors  (or persons  performing the equivalent function):
 
    (a)  Al l  s ignificant deficiencies  and materia l  weaknesses  in the des ign or opera on of internal  control  over financial  repor ng which are reasonably l ikely to adversely
affect the registrant’s  abi l i ty to record, process , summarize and report financial  information; and
 
    (b)  Any fraud, whether or not materia l , that involves  management or other employees  who have a s ignificant role in the registrant’s  internal  control  over financial
reporting.
 
 
Date: September 28, 2021 By:  /s/ John Merri l l

John Merri l l
Chief Financial  Officer
(Principal  Financial  Officer & Principal  Accounting Officer)

 
 



 Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. Sec.1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

I n connec on with the Annual  Report of Park C ity Group, I nc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K  for the year ending June 30, 2021 as  filed with the Securi es  and
Exchange Commiss ion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I , Randal l  K . F ields , P rincipal  Execu ve O fficer of the Company and I , John Merri l l , P rincipal  F inancial  O fficer of the
Company, do hereby certi fy, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as  adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:
 
1.  
 

The Report ful ly compl ies  with the requirements  of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securi ties  Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

2.  The information contained in the Report fa i rly presents , in a l l  materia l  respects , the financial  condition and result of operations  of the Company.
 
 

 
 

Date: September 28, 2021
    

By:  /s/  Randal l  K. Fields
Randal l  K. Fields
Chief Executive Officer, Chairman and Director
(Principal  Executive Officer)

 
Date: September 28, 2021 By:  /s/ John Merri l l

John Merri l l
Chief Financial  Officer
(Principal  Financial  Officer and Principal  Accounting Officer)

 
 




